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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)
RIYADH - SAUDI ARABIA

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ataa Educational Company (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries together (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 July 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
,statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements
. including material accounting policy information

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 July 2024, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and
other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional
.Accountants (“SOCPA”)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in
the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our®
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
.and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
.opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters
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RSM Allied Accountants Professional Services Co.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key audit matters | How our audit addressed the key audit matter
1- Revenue Recognition

The Group's revenues for the year ended 31 July : We have performed the following
2024 amounted to SAR 666.4 million and :procedures

overnment subsidies iIncome amounted to . .
governm es d ° Assessing of the appropriateness of the

approximately SAR 12.1 million. Group's revenue recognition policy based on [IFRS
Revenues are one of the key indicators for | 15 "Revenue from contracts with customers".

measuring performance and this results in | e Evaluation of the design and
inherent risks in the revenue recognition | implementation of the internal control systems
process. related to management procedures over revenue
) ) recognition, discounts and government grants.
Revenues recognized from educational : . i
° Testing on a sample basis the revenue

services, training and employment services and
bus subscriptions on net basis after any
deductions or discounts and government
subsidies income. As explained in Notes (22) | )
recorded revenue.

and (32). o Perform substantive analytical procedure
Given the materiality of the recorded revenue | on tuition fees revenues based on the number of
value as well as the inherent risks in the revenue | students and approved fee for the educational
recognition process, revenue recognition was | process to assess the reasonableness of the revenue
considered a key audit matter. amount.

° Inquires with management
representatives  and  those charged  with
governance regarding their awareness of fraud
risks and whether there were actual instances of

transactions, recorded government grants and
discounts grants to students and comparing them
with the supporting documents to verify the

Refer to material accounting policy information
in Note (3-24) for revenue recognition policy,
and Notes (22) and (32) for more detail of

revenue.
fraud.
° We assessed the adequacy of disclosures
used in the consolidated financial statements.

2- Goodwill impairment assessment

The consolidated financial statements include | We have performed the following
goodwill amounting to Saudi Riyals 535.5 procedures.

million as at 31 July 2024, which represents the
excess of the aggregate of the value of the | We have obtained all impairment tests
consideration transferred, the amount of any | provided by management and performed
non-controlling interest, the acquisition-date following tests.

fair value of the acquirer's previously-held
equity interest in the acquire, over the net
identifiable assets transferred to the Group.

° We analyzed the identification of the
different CGU and assessed whether these were in
line with our understanding of the business and
Goodwill is tested annually for possible | consistent with the internal reporting system in the
impairment. The management performed a | entity.  Furthermore, we  assessed the
goodwill assessment by comparing the carrying | reasonableness of allocation of the goodwill to
amount of each cash generating unit (“CGUs”) | each identified CGU.

including goodwill, against its recoverable | o Evaluation of the design and
amount based on value-in-use. implementation of the internal control relating to

| . . : : oodwill impairment assessment
Value-in-use calculations, using discounted g p ]

cash flow model through the use of cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a period of five years.
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RSM Allied Accountants Professional Services Co.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
2- Goodwill impairment assessment (Continued)
Based on management's assessment of | e We involved our experts to assess the

impairment, there is no impairment of goodwill. | reasonableness of the value in use calculations and
the key assumptions, including cash flow
projections, discount rates used and ensures that
management follows a reliable mechanism for
estimating cash flows.

° We tested the input data used in the value
in use calculation on a sample basis and reviewed
the mathematical accuracy of the calculation, we
also compared key assumptions with previous
actual results.

Please refer to the material accounting policy | We assessed the adequacy of disclosures

information No. (3-5) and (3-7) for the policy of | ysed in the consolidated financial statements.
goodwill and goodwill impairment and note No.

(8) that includes disclosures related to goodwill
and impairment assessment of goodwill.

The Group's value in use calculation used in the
goodwill impairment assessment for CGUs
includes significant judgments, assumptions
and estimates from management regarding cash
flow projections, long-term growth rates and
discount rates, and is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions, and, thus was considered
as a key audit matter.

Other matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 July 2023 were audited by
another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements on
18 Rabie Althanie 1445H (corresponding to 2 November 2023)

Other Information

Other information consists of the information included in the Group’s 2024 annual report, other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for
.the other information in its annual report

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
.not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
.fact. We have nothing to report in this regard

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA and Regulations
for Companies and the Company’s Bylaws and for such internal control as management determines

is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are fiee fiom material
.misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's abilily to conlinue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related (o going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 1o liquidate
Jhe Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so

Those charged with governance, i.¢. the Board of Dircetors, are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process

Aunditor's Responsibilities for the Andit of the Consolidated Financial Statemenis

Oir objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
45 & whole are free from material misstatement, whetber due to fraud or error, and o issue an auditor’s
report that incledes cur opinion. Reasonable assurance is & high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantes that an audit conducted in sccordance with International Standards on Auditing that are
emdorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always detect a material misstatement when it exists
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected Lo influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements

As part of an audil in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saedi Arabia, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticizm
sthroughout the audil, We also

o [denlify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform andit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk
of net detecting a material misstatement resulting from frawd is higher than the one resulting from
error, a5 fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresemtations, or the
override of intemal conirol,

+«  Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the andit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the cireumstances, bul not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

#  Bwvalvate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of sccounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the poing concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group®s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required fo drww attention in our auditors
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
Ccese [0 conlinue 05 a going concern.

#  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial stalements,

mncluding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated fnancial statements represent the
underlying transections and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Andit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continwed)

®  Dbtain sufficient appropriate andit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business aclivities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with povernance reganding, among other matters, the planned

scope and fiming of the audit and significant awdit fndings, including any significant deliciencies in

mternal control that we identify during our awdit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken o eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated finencial statements of the curent period
and are therefore the key audit marters. We describe these matters in our anditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circomstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing =0 would reasonably be expected fo outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

RSM Allied Accountants Professional Services
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mMaohamed Bin Farhan Bin Mader
License Mo 435

Rivadh, Saudi Arabia

30 Safar 1446H (Corresponding to 3 September 2024)
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ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
{8andi Join Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSISTION
As of 31 July 2024
IAll amounts in SAR unless otherwise stated)

31 Bulby 2023 I Aagusi 2027
Hote 31 July 2024 (Hestated) [Hestaied)
ASSETH
Nom-Current Assets
Praperty, planl and eqmipenent 5 BE9,427, k60 E%3,517 583 E04, 742,006
Kightofmse s & 454,688, Th1 403,702,977 AT AT930
ntzmgible nmels T L5 484,099 A S0EA55 25A30ET2
Cloadwilll k 515 544,380 515,544,389 535 544380
Todnl Wen-Current Assets 1,505, 144,610 AR T 389, 104 1 AGT 390,197
Currenl Assels
Invenioey 6330, 79T A6, 743 4,003 557
Frepaid expenses and olher cument nsets [ 45,743,650 40,973,085 34,237,592
Due from related pariy 11-2 1,197,314 245, RR0 36,110
Acrounts receivohls @ . fd 5, 0904 5940 4615 116,215,585
Cesh nodd cash equivalents 12 #5599 &aY 5497, |87 AR 961017
Tuotal Carrent Asiels 223,706,724 203 60, 541 A0 A5 RG]
Mom=turrent asgsels hedd for zale 5 26,477 040 - =
TOTAL ASSETH 2,175 354,374 2,083,449, 549 2,071,241 058
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Shere capital 3 A20H72,150 420,872,130 420,872,150
Share premium 13-1 T4, Tha 801 206, T4 RED 276, TRE BE)
Swlutory reserve 14 =1,0640,154 44,723,155 37,044 461
Actuarinl reserve (14,658,082 {12,075,013) {9,919,614)
Reamingd earnimps &7, 300,247 6,562,360 D5 A0, T8
Eyuily Adtributable th Sharcholders of 801,321,330 T, T A28 431504 607
the Campany
Hon-Controbling Interast ﬁ_!-.'??ﬁ!-!ﬂ 085 665 [ 1.E77
TOTAL ECQAITY BAS0Y5, T 46 R14.993 EAZ.213.484
LIABILITIES
Mam-Curréent Linbilitbix
Barrowinps Ih 340,255 441 322,847,821 367,550,761
Liase liabilities 0 476,994,160 506, 703,566 413,346,037
Delerred government subsidy income 17 428,174 T 505 1045614
Banployes end-of-servics benefits g 61,044,057 sS4 Fa6. 001 AlER, T
Total Men-Curreni Linhilitis HASTE A2 iﬂgﬂﬂl,]'ﬁ 231,593,072
Current Linbilities
Bomawings 13 274,178.281 174,276,298 122,867 B 1
Lpas: lishilites [ 24,151,703 42, 2H), 491 M TRL655
Delerred govermment subsidy income () 2Ta.423 334 399,199
Unegmed revenue [ 50,554,102 6,064 127 26,258,505
Acctiin expengss and olher eurrent
linbllRics k4] 18,424,771 T24R0.4510 50024, 304
Dhsez b related parties 113 4,378,686 TREATS JA0E214
Trade paynhles 10,144, 137 16, 106260 13,25E 21
Zakat provisinn 212 1411 934 4,338,873 4,734 46K
Todal Current Linbiliiics 424,520,027 3dh,852,370 256,456, 500
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,500,242 654 1,374,634 556 I.Iﬂ!il..l:_ﬂr'ﬂ.ﬁﬂ-
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIARILITIES 2,175,338.374 I8 445, 540 071 143 D3R
Chiel Financial Officer Chiel Execative Officer Chafrman
Adel Nader Desouk| Fohd Bin Abdulaziz Al- Tarig Bin I:hth]n.an Al-

g o Tusgaijri

The secompanying notes 1 to 36 form an | part of these consolidated financial
g

2P



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
[Baudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 July 2024
LAl amounts in SAR unless otherwise stated)

Mote 31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Revenue 2132 0a6,479.47% 666,041,507
Govemiment subsidy income 23 12,162,915 14,315,295
Cost of revenuoe 24 (482,233,915) {485,117,835)
Gross profit L 408,479 195,238 067
Marketing expenses 15 (7,632,517) (BA52,T2R)
General and administrative expenses 26 (57,130,709) (74,370,746)
Expected credit loss expense 1KLL {12,503 4RH) 5,665 247)
Operating income 118,741,765 106,750,246
Cither income 27 L2 818,550 21315,152
Finanes costs 28 (63,041,143) (55, 867,604)
Met income for the year before wabad 68,519,172 72,197,704
Enkat 1 (1,779,563) (2,701,088
Net income for the year 66,739,609 69406616
Met income for the year attvibutable to:
Sharcholders of the Company 63,370,905 67,786,016
Non-Controlling Interest 3,368,701 1,620,600
G, 739,609 69,406,616
Basic and diluted earnings per share:
Hasic and diluted earnings per share as per
net income for the vear attributable to
Shareholders of the Company 0 1.51 [.61
Chief Financial OMficer Chiel Executive Officer Chairman
Adel Mader Desouki Fehd h“;. l‘:"wh::l‘:m it Tariq bin Othman Al-Qasabi

The accompanying notes | to 36 form an integral part of these consolidated financial siatemenis
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ATAAEDUCATIONAL COMPANY
(Saudi Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 July 2024
LAl amounts in SAR unkess otherwise stated)

Note 31 July 2024 11 July 2023
Net income for the year 66,739,604 69,406,616
i classi
subsequently
1o statvment of profit or loss: ﬁ
Actvarial losses on re-measurement of
employee end-of-service benefits 15 (2,542 508) (2,151,892) .
Total comprehensive income for the year 64,197,101 67,214,724
Total comprehensive income for the year
aftributalile to:
Shareholders of the Company 60,547,938 65,530,518
Non-Controlling Interest 3,349,163 1,584,206
6id, 197,101 67,214,724
Chiel Finnncial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman
Aol Nader Desoukd Fuhd Bin Ahl:]_uhzi?. Al Torig Bin Cihman Al-

Tuwaijri Jasab

The accompanying notes | 1o 36 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
[Baud] Joint Stock Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
bur the year ended 31 July 2024
(Al ameunts in SAR unless otherwise stated)

HNote 31 Juby 2024 31 Jaly Bired
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Hed inerane for the yenr before Zakoal L AL B TLAUT. 704
Adjustmenis for:
Depreciation of properly, plant and eqaipmeont 5 19,517,565 IR265,110
E‘q1ihllu:a-r.: 858,391 &0, 665
Amnettlion of imlangibie gsaets 7 216,257 a2 ELY
Uopregiation Df:l'jg_hn-l:lf-mt nasels & 40988 13% 51,EE3 470
Rowersal of o pravidion po bangsr required 17 (34,9310 -
Modilication losses on lease linbilities 14 - 357,504
Cains en derecogmition of bease linhilities 17 133,993 (2,204, 850)
Pravision for expected credit loss LT | 1T,k 4%R 5,565,147
Fimamvr Costs i8 65,041,143 55.867,604
Cuysren] servies cost of employuee id-of-ssrvics henefits IH TE F T4 K10
136487 855 225,281,442
Clanges noperating rssets and Uabilities:
Inventory {124,054) (2404, 1RG)
Prepudd sapenses and ather currenl as3eis 1,228 439 (13,5961, 500
Do Trom reladed party (1,170,510) CEB08TT9)
Agcounts recsivabio 1721138 i 4%d T
Uinearned revenoe 11,460,975 9,125,622
Arzrued experses and other currend Hahllitiss {54 NEE, GE0) 42456037
Due o relnted parties 3,592,207 (2,614, T35)
Trde payables {6, 162,123] 3,055,054
Cagh gemerated from apernting nolivities 204 270270 PR R
Emd-of-service henefits paid I8 (11,180.586) (I aE5A%0)
Zakoat pakd 11 1,586 {3, 186677}
Met cish gemerated from operating acfivities 101 007 NEE 248 310,454
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTIMNG ACTIVITIES
Additinns of property, plant, equipmentand sl projecis 5 {120,567, 749) {61,953,229)
wrdes Gansiruclion
Provesds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 13,252 1034874
Paymenta-far the sequisition of nun-cantrollbng interest of - e, ad6 A0
aubghdinries
Addizions of imlangible asses 7 (1732 526} =
Met cash wied bn investing nctivities {122,245.073) [120.454,955)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
Borromwings Recsived ([ TTLATS0% 393 698,750
Bnrrawings paid [Gid ek 4B, 345) (407,878,055}
Fimarge cosis pabd (37,5, HTR) (B, 0655, 263)
Drividends Pald % {40,295 980 [42,087.213)
Diefereed povermment ashedy income 17 (AE 016) {1 0y
Cither adjustment on non-contolling intees 170,462
Loass lEshililies paid [ (5,59, 2250 [ TE, G003 2R
Mat ensh {msed in) / generated from finencing activities (23,551,433) (137,333,969}
et Change im eash amd cash l:qnh'nlﬂu A, 1, HET (9467, B30%
Cash nnd cash equivalents st beginning of the yeur 39450, 157 AB561,017
Ceiland eash equivalents ot end al the year 1z &5 2590 B4 I 40% 1RT
Mon-Cash Transactisns A3
Chicf Financial Officer Chief Fxecutive Officer Chairman
Adel Mader Desoukd Fahd Eh? Abdulaziz Al- Tarig Bin Othman Al
ua.'.-'nun abi

W&L

___The sccompanying notes | to 36 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

-
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ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
(Saundi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024
[All amounts in saudi riyals unless otherwise stated)

. LEGAL STATUS AND ACTIVITIES

Ataa Educational Company {the “Company™) is a Saudi Joint Stock Company, incorporated under the
Regulations for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and was registered in Rivadh under
Commercial Registration No. 1010186435 dated 10 Rabi® 1 1424 AH corresponding to 11 May 2003,
ms Saudi Joint Stock Company under the Ministerial Resolution No, (71/8) on 10 Rabi' 1 1431 AH
corresponding to 24 February 2010,

Cn 29 Thul-Qidih 1440 AH coresponding to 31 July 2019, the Company's shares were listed and
started trading on Saudi Stock Exchange (Tadawul} under the code (4202, Trading of the Company's
shares in Saudi Stock Exchange commenced on 31 July 2019G after obtuining the approval of the
Capital Market Authority in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

The Company is principally engaged in the establishment of private and international schools,
kindergarten, primary, intermediate and secondary schools for boys and girls (general and
memorization), colleges and universities in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and abrosd, establishing,
managing and maintaining training centers purchasing existing schools and educational and training
facilities, and developing and managing them owning, managing and operating educational and training
institutes, owning and managing vocational training centers, und establishing, owning and Mmanaging
private educational schaols. The Company operates in accordance with the applicable regulations and
after obtaining the necessary licenses from the relevant authoritics.

The Company's head office is located as follows:
P.C», Box B7527

Rivadh 116352

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

The Company”s financial year commences on | August and ends on 31 July of each vear in accordance
with the Compuny s by-twws,

The aftached consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Com pany, its branches and
subsidiaries ns follows:

iA)  Ataa Edocational Company's branches

Branch Namue CR No.

Al-Rowad Schools - Ledihar District 1010362199
Al-Rowad Schools - Al Rawabi District 1010275978
Al-Rowad Schools - Al Mansoura District 1010397500
Al-Rowad Selhools - Al-Andalus District (010203258
Al-Rowad Schools - Ishbiliyah District 1010469726
Middbe East Infernational School - Ishbilivah District 1010450854
Al Fikr Private School - Al-Behmanivah District 1010192540
Middle East International School - Sulaymaniyah Districi 1010903137
Middle East Intermational School - Mourouj District 1OR9254]
Mew Middle East International School - Sulaymanivah District 1010250798
Modern Middle East International School - Ravwda District TOT0352008
Al Sulaymanivah International Private School - Sulaymaniyeh District LOL0 98919

Ataa Educational Company for Maintenance and Operation - Al-Azdibar district 1010452144




ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

{Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the yenr ended 31 July 2024

(Al amounts in saudi riyals unless otherwise stated)

. LEGAL STATUS AND ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

(B)  The subsidiaries

The subsidiaries of the Group that are owned directly or indirectly (“refermed to as™ the Girowp ")

sn inry

Al Nokhibah Educational Company (1)
Al Oruba International Company for
Edweation Services (2)

Al-Rowad Company for Supporting
Services (3)

Elm International Schools Company
(4)

Wasat Mational Training and
Education Company (5)

Arabian Education and Training Group
Holding Company (6)

Creative Development Company (A
branch of Company Arabian Education
and Training Group Holding
Company) {6

Alfaisal International Academy (A
branch of Company Arabian Education
and Training Group Holding
Company) (6)

Amjad Qurtuba Educational Services
Company (&)

Mabaa Educational Company (6)
Al-Alsun Imtemational Private Schools
Company (h)

Jasmine International Company (6}
Jeel Al Majd International Private
Schools Company (6)

Academic Company for Educational
Services (6)

Effective Ownership

Perecentage

(Direet / Indirect)
Coundry of Ligal 3 July 31 July

_Incorporation Form 2024 _2023

KSA LLC 10 100
K5A LLC 1, 100%
KSA LLC 10 % [ 00%
KS8A LLC 1040 100%
KSA LLC 52% 51%
KSA CISC 1 1004
KSA LLC - [ (H0%
KSA LLC - 100
K5A LLC L 10
KSA LL (EITIR 0%
KEA LLC 100 | (0%
KEA LLC LI 1%
EEA LLC 1% 10
KSA CISC 52.2% 332%

(1} The Nokhbah Educational Company is u limited liability Company, incorporated under the
Begulations for Companies in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and registered in Riyadh under
Conunercial Registration No. 1010231261 on 26 Rabi Al-Awwal, 1428 AH corresponding fo 14

April 2007,

The Company is principally engaged in pre-school and kindergarten education with a natioanal
curriculum, primary, intermediate and secondary education for male and female students with a

national curriculom,

The Company operates through Al Nokhba Educational Schools, Al Kharj Branch, Al Mahda
District, under commercial registration Mo. 1011010525 in Riyadh cn 15 Jumada Al Awwal 1425

AH eorresponding to 3 July 2004,

. o




ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
(sandi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024
CAI amounts in saudi riyals unless otherwise stated)

I. LEGALSTATLS AMD ALY S {CONTINUED

(B)  The subsidiaries {continued)

(2} Al Uruba International Company for Education Seevices (“the Company™) is a limited liability
Company, incorporated under the Regulations for Companies in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and
registered in Riyadh under Commercial Registeation Mo, 1010259834 on 25 Dhual-Hijjah 1429
AH corresponding to 24 December 2008,

The Company is principally engaged in pre-school and Kindergarten education with an international
curriculum, primary, intermediste and secondary education for male and female students with an
international currieuliom.

(3) Al-Rowad Company for Supporting Services (“the Company™) i a limited lisbility Company,
incorporated under the Regulations for Companies in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and registered in
Riyadh under Commercial Registration Mo. 10102995060 on 19 Muharram 1432 AH corresponding
ity 25 December 2000,

The Company is principally engaged in general construetion for non-residential buildings such as
schools, hospitals and hotels, and educational transportation,

¢4} Elm International Schools Company (“the Company™) is a limited liability Company, incorparated
under the Regulations for Companies in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and registered in Rivadh under
Commerzial Registration Mo, 1010218835 on 3 Rabi® Al-Thani 1427 AH corresponding to | May
200K,

The Company is principally engaged in pre-school and kinderganten education with an intecnational
curriculum, primary, intermediate and secondery education for male and female students with an
international curriculum.

The Company operates through the Elm International Schools Company branch, under commoergial
registration Mo. 1010393369 in Riyadh on [ Rabi® al-Akhir 1435 AH corresponding to | February
2014,

(5) Al-Wasat Mational Training and Education Company is a limited liability Company, incorparated
under the Regulations for Companies in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and registered in Rivadh under
Commercial Registration Mo, 1010192295 on 26 Shawwal 1424 AH corresponding to |8 December
2003.

The Company is principally engaged in primary, inlermediate and secondary education for students
with a national curriculum,

() Arabian Education and Training Group Holding Company (“the Company™) is a Saudi closed joint
stock company in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and was registered at the Commercial registration No.
1010206103 in Rivadh on 18 Mubarram 1426 AH comesponding to 27 February 2003,

The Company is principally engaped in managing subsidiaries of holding companies, investing
the funds of subsidiaries of holding companies, holding real estate and movable property necessary
for the holding companies, providing loans, guarantees, and finance 1o subsidiares of holding
companies, holding industrial property rights to subsidiaries of holding companies and leasing
industrial property rights to subsidiaries of holding companies.




ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
{Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024
(Al amounts in saudi riyals unless otherwise stated)

I LEGAL STATUS AND ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED])

(B The subsidiaries {continued)

On February 1, 2024, Al-Faisal International Academy Company and Creative Development Company
were transformed to become branches of the Arabian Education and Training Group Holding Company.

Ataa Educational Company (“the Company™) indirecily owns the rest of the companies mentioned in
the note through Arvabian Education and Training Group Holding Company {“the Company™) aceording
to ownership percentages set out in the note.

The new Companies Law 1ssued through Royal Decree M/132 on 1/12/1443H [corresponding to 30
June 2022} (hereinafier referred as "the Law™) came into force on 26/6/1444 H (corresponding to 19
January 2023). For certain provisions of the Law, full compliance is expected not later than two years
from 26/6/1444H {comesponding to 19 January 2023). The management is in process of assessing the
impact of the New Companies Law and will amead its By-Laws for any changes 1o align the Articles
to the provisions of the Law, Consequently, the Company shall present the amended Articles of By-
Lizws to the shareholders in their Extraordinary/Annual General Assembly meeting for their ratification.

2- BASIS OF FREPARATION AND MEASUREMENT

2-1 Statement of complinnee

These conselidated financial statements (“Financial Statements™) have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reperting Standards as endorsed in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other
standards and pronouncements that are isssed by Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional
Accoumtants (SOCPA) |

The Group has elected to present a separate consolidated statement of profit or loss and a separate
statement of comprehensive income, and o classify its expenses by function. The components of cther
comprehensive income represent items of pains and losses that have not yet been realized, and they are
presented within the other comprehensive income section m the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The Group reports cash flows from operating activities using the indirect
method

2-1  Basis of measurement

The conselidated lnancial statements have been prepared on an accroal basis and a going concern basis,
and on a histarical cost basis, except for:

- Employee end-of-service benefit obligations using the projected eredit unit method.

-lease [inbilities that are recognized at the present value of future obligations

-Ministry of Finance borrowings thal are recognized at the present value of future obligations.

2=} Functional and presentation currency

These consoliduted financial statements are presented in Saudi Amabian Rivals (SAR), which is the
Group's functional and presentation currency. Figures have been rounded offto the nearest SAR, unless
otherwise stated.

2-4 Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financinl statements of Atta Educational Company
and its branches and subsidiaries (the Group) as described in Note (1),

Subsidiaries are entitics which are controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investes. Specifically, the Group controls an investes if
and only if the Group has:

= Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
pelivities of the investees)

s  Exposure, or rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the investee, and
The ability 1o vuse ils power over the investoe (o affect its returns.,

e




ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
{Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ¢nided 31 July 2024
{All amcunts in sandi rivals unless otherwise stated)

2- BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MEASUREMENT {C( INTINUELD)

1-4 Basis of consolidation {(Continued)

When the Group maintaings less than the majority of voting er similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers sll relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investes,
including;

s ‘The contraciual arrangement with the other voting hobders of the investee
& Rights arising from other coniraciual arrangements
* The Group's voting rights and potential vating rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes 1o one of more of the three elements of control, Consolidation of & subsidiary begins
when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses its control over
the subsidiary. Assets, linbilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed during the
vear are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that the Group gains control
until the date the Group ceases to confrol over subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of consolidated comprehensive income are attributable 1o
shareholders of the Parent Company of the Group and to the non-centrolling interests, even if this
pestlts in the non-controlling interests having a defivil balance.

When necessary, adjusiments are made to the financial statemenis of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group's accounting policies, All inter-Group asset and linbilitics,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full upon consolidation,

A change in the owneeship interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group losses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilitics of the subsidiary.

Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling inferests,

Derseognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity.

Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received.

Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained,

Recopnizes any surplus or deficit in consolidated statement of profit or loss,

Reclassifies the Pareml Company’s share of components previously recognized in the
comprehensive income to consoliduted statement of profit or loss or refained CAMings, s
appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

Balances, transactions, and unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated when preparing the consolidated finencial statements, Unrealized losses ane eliminated in
the same manner &5 unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is 1o evidence of impairment,

- Iih-



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY

(Sandi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024

(All amounts in saudi rivals unless otherwise staled)

3= MATERIAL ACCOUNTING PC

The material accounting policies applied by the Group in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below, These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

unless otherwise stated.

3-1 MNew standards, amendments to standards and interpretations

A number of new amendments i the standards, outlined below, are effective during the current year
buil do not have a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements:

[Ad MNew amendments to the standards isswed and adopted in 2024

Mew  Standaeds  and

Effective for
anmuwal  periods

Amendments i begsinning on
Standards or after
Classification of | January 2024
Liabilities as Current or

Mon-current =

Aumendments to [TAS |

Amendment to IFRS I6 1 January 2024

— Lease liability in a spbe
and lease back

Supplier Finance
arcAngenmeits .
Amendments 1o [AS 7
and IFRS 7

I January 2024

Summary of Amendments

The namow-scope amendments to [AS ]
*Presentation of Financial Statements’, clarify that
liabilities are classified as either current ar non-
currenl, depending on the rights that exist ar the
end of the reporting period. Classification is
unafTected by the expectations of the entity or
events after the reporting date (e.g. the receipt of a
waiver or a breach of covenant). The amendmenis
also clanfy what IAS | means when it refers to the
*settlement” of & liability.

These amendments mclude requirements fior sale
and leaseback transactions in IFRS 16 to explain
how an entity accounts for a sale and lesseback
after the date of the transaction. Sale and leasehack
transactions where some or all the lease payments
are variahle lease payments that do not depend on
an index or rate are most likely to be impacted,

These amendments require disclosures to enhance
the transparency of supplier finance arrangements
and their effects on a company's linbilities, cash
Mows and exposure to  liquidity risk, The
disclosure requirements are the |[ASB’s response
o investors” concerns that some companies’
supplier finance arrangements are not sufficiently
vizible, hindering investors' anabysis,




ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
(Randi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 July 2024
(Al amounts in saudi rivals unless otherwise stated)

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

31

(B)
have not vet heen applied

New standards, amendments 1o standards and interpretations {Continued)
New standards and amendmenis to standards, interpretations and gsoed standards thai

The Group has not applied the new and amended Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
amd the following amendments to IFRS, which have been issued bul are not vet effective.

sumimary of Amendmenis

Effective for
MNew Standards and annual periods
Amendments o bepinning on
Standards or after
Lack of | January 2025

exchangeability -
Amendment to IAS 21

An entity is impocted by the amendments when it
has a transaction or an operation in a foreign
currency that is not exchangeable into anothes

currency at a measurement date for a specified
purpose, A currency is exchangeable when there is
an ability to obtain the other currancy (with a
notimal administrative delay), and the transaction
would take place through a market or exchange
mechanism that creates cnforceable rights and
obligations,

Classification and | January 2026
Measurement of .
Financial Instraments

Amendments to IFRS 9

and IFRS 7

These pmendments melude:

Clarification of the timing requirements for
recopnizing and devecognizing certain financial
assets and liabilities, with a new exception for
some financial lighilities settled through an
electronic cash transfer system,

Additional guidance on assessing whether a
financial asset meets the criteria for a single
payment of principal and interest.

Introduction of new disclosures for specific
Ninanciel instruments with confracieal ferms
that could alter cash flows (such as some
instruments linked to environmental, social, and
governance (ESG) targets).

Updates to disclosures related 1o eguity instruments
mensured at fair value through other comprehensive
income,

IFES 18 — Presentation
mnd Disclosure in
Financial Stateimeants

| Jamwary 2027

The new standard on presentation and disclosure in
financial statements, require more focus on updates
o the statement of profit or loss. The key new

coneepls introduced in [FES 18 relate toz:

the structure of the statement of profit or loss;
required disclosures in the financial statements
for certain profit or loss performance measures
that are reported outside an entity’s financial
statements  (that 5 manigemeni-defined
performance measures); and

enhanced principles on  apgregation  and
disaggregation which apply 1o the primary
finamcial statements and nodes in general,

o, e S



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
[Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024
{All amounts in saudi rivals unless otherwise stated)

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

31 MNew standards, amendments to standards and interpretations (Continued)

(B} New standards and amendments to standards, interpretations and issued standards that
have not yet been applicd (Continued)

Management anticipates that these new interpretations and amendments will be adopted in the Group's
consolidated financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these interpretations
and amendments may have ne material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
the period of initial application.

3-2 Current versus non-curvent classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position based on
current/non-corrent classification.

An asset 5 curment when i 15

s Expected to be realized or intended 1o be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle.

» Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading.

s Expected to be realized within twelve menths after the reporting period.

s Cash or cash equivalent unless restricied from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-carrent assets.
A liahility is curront when:

= |t is expecied to be setiled in the normal operating cyele.
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period.

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the fiahility for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current liabilities,
3-3 Foreign curréncy

Foreign currency transactions are translated inio the functional currency based on the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
seftlement of such transactions, as well as from the translation of monctary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies of the exchange rates prevailing at the vear-end, are recognized n
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Fareign exchange gains and losses related to borvowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income uinder "Finance income or costs." All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
under "Other operating income.”

1%



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
{Sandi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024
{All amounnts in sandi riyals unless otherwise stated)

3- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
3-4 Property and equipment (Continued)

Property and equipment are recognized initially at the cost of acquisition, incleding any directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for them to operate in
the manner intended by the Grroup’s management. These assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impaiment losses, if any

When the major components of property end equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separale items of property and equipment. Depreciation is charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and caleulated using the straight-line method to allocate the costs of the related assets
after deducting the residual values over the estimated wseful lives of each item of property and
equipiment. The following are the estimated depreciation rates for the assets:

Years
Buildings and improvements S50
Electrical wools & equipment a-10
Muotor vehicles 10
Furniture & Tixhures 4-10

Kepair and maintenance costs are expensed to the consolidated statement of profit and loss. Repair and
mainletance expenditures that significantly increase the value of assets or extend their useful lives are
capitalized

Depreciation method, residual value and useful lives estimates are reviewed annually.

An item of property and equipment and any significant parts that were originally recognized are
derecognized at disposal or when no future benefits are expected from the uso or dizposal, Any gain or
loss om the derecognition of an asset (which is caleulated as the difference between the net proceeds
from disposal and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on derecognizing the asset. The carrying amount of an asset is reduced immediately 1o its
recoverable amount if the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

Capiftal works in process

Assets under construction or development are capitalized in capital works in process, then the cost of
assels under construction or development is transferred to the appropriate category of property and
equipment or intangible assets {depending on the nature of the project), upon bringing the asset to the
site and/or the condition necessary Lo be able to operate in the manner intended by Management, The
expenditures of capital works in process includes the acquisition price, the cost of construction /
development and any other costs directly attributable o capitel works originated or acquired under
management’s consideration, The expenditures associated with testing capital works in process items
{befiore they are ready to use) arc capitalized net of proceeds from the sale of any production during the
test period, Capital works in process are not depreciated or amortized.

35 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses, They are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenses are incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are estimated to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their uselul economic lives, The sstimated
amortization period and the amaortization method are reviewed at least st the end of each reporting vear.
considering the prospective effect of any changes in accounting estimates.

T



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
{Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024
[_MI amounts in saudi rivals unless otherwise stated)

3-
35 Intangible assets (Continued)

L ACCOUN LICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED

Intangible asscts with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are assessed annually for impairment.
The useful life of an intangible asset that is not being amortized is reviewed annual ly for any indication
for indefinite useful life. The effect of a change in the useful life assessment from finite to indefinite is
accounted for as a change in sccounting estimates prospectively.

Computer softwire
Licenses of software acquired from other parties are initially recognized at cost. They are amortized on
4 straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 4 to 5 vears.

Student Lisi
The student list acquired by the Group from the acquisition of subsidiaries with finite useful life is
measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses,

Amdrtization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual value
on a straighi-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 8 years and recognized in the consolidated
profit or loss,

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
if necessary.

Framchise

The franchise is the exclusive right o use the trademark within Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and is
measured at cost at initial recognition. Subsequently, it is carried at cost less accumulated smortization
and any accumnlated impairment losses. The franchise is amortized based on straight-line method over
the franchise agreement term, which is estimated to be 12 years,

Ceochwill
Goodwill on acquisition is initially recognized at cost, which is the excess of the husiness combination
cost over the Group®s interest in fair value of net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acuired.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units for impairment festing.
The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units expected 1o
benetit from the business combination that gives rise to goodwill.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less acoumulated impairment losses. Impairment
bosses of goodwill are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Goodwill is assessed
annually or more frequently for impairment losses, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
its carrying amount may be impaired.

3= Lenses

The Gronp as a Lessee:

The Group leases several plots of land and buildings, typically under fixed-term leases, which Ly
include extension options. The lease terms are negotiated individually and encompass a wide range of
different lerms and conditions, The lease agreements do nol impose any covenants, except for SECUTitY
interests in the leased assets held by the lessor. However, the leased assets may not be nsed as collateral
for bormowing purposes. For leases where the Group is the lessee, refer to Note 6.

The Group assesses whether a contract constitutes, or containg, a lease at the commencement of the
contract. The Group recognizes right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilitics for all lease
agreements where the Group is the lessee, except for short-term leases {defined as leases with o duration
of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets, For these leases, the Group records lease payments
as operaling expenses on a siraight-line basis over the lease term, unless there is another systematic
basis that more accurately reflects the timing pattern in which the economic benefits of the leased asset
are consumiesd,

-15-



ATAALEDUCATIONAL COMPANY
{Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024
{All amcunts in saudi riyals unless otherwise stated)

3- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING FOLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
3y Leases (Continued)

When determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that provide an
economic imcentive to exercise an extension oplion or not to exercise a termination option. Extension
options are included in the lease term only if the extension of the lease is reascnably certain, In
determining the lease term, management penerally takes into account several factors, ineluding
historical lease periods, costs, and business disruption required to replace the leased asset. Conlracis
may contamn both lease and non-lease components, The Group allocates the consideration in the
contret 10 the lease and non-lease components based on their relative standalone prices.

The lease liability is initially measured st the net present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar valoe 1o the Aght-of-use asset in a similar
Leponomic environment with similar terms, security and conditions

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group

= where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received:

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases
held by the individual lessee, which doess not have recent third-party financing, and

= makes adjustments specific to the lease, for example term, country, currency and security.

The lease liabilities include the present value of the following lease payments:

Fived lease payments, bess any lease incentives receivable.

Yariable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate
at the commencement date.

Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value puamantess.

Exercize price of purchase options if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise those options.
Penalties for terminating the lease if the lease term reflects the exercise of a termination option,

Lease payments made under reasonably cerlein extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease linbility is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount 1o reflect interest on the
lease liability {using the effective interest rate method) and decreasing the carryving amount to reflect
lease payments madc.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and adjusts the corresponding right-of-use asset) when:

& The lease term changes or there is a change in the assessment of the exercise of a purchase option,
in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using 3
revised discount rate,

= Lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate, or changes in expected payments under
a gouaranteed residual value, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the original discount mate (unless the lease payments change due to
changes in Moating interest rates, in which case the revised discount rate is nsed); the lease contract
iz adjusted and the adjustment Is not considered & separate lease, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by dizcounting the revised lease payments uging a revised discount rate.

= 1G -



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
{Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year eaded 31 July 2024
(AN amounts in sandi riyals unless otherwise stated)

i MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION {(CONTINUED)
36 Leases (Continued)

Risht-of-Use Assets

Right-of-use assets include the initial measurement of the corresponding lease hability, lease
payments made on or before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs; they are
subsagquently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if amy.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term or the vseful life of the underlying asset,
whichever is shorter, 1f the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-
use asset reflects the Group's expectation of exercising a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. Depreciation starts from the lease
commencement dale,

The Group applies TAS 36 "Impairment of Assets” to determine whether a right-of-use asset has
suffered impairment and records any impairment losses.

Variable lense payments that do sot depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets. Such payments are recognized as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in profil or Joss,

When the Group faces potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
they are not included in lease liabilities untl they become effective. When adjustments 1o lease
payments based on an index or rate become effective, the lease liabilities are remeasured und adjusted
against the right-of-use assgels.

Lease payments are allocated between the principal portion and the cost of financing, The cost of
financing is charged to profit or loss over the lease term so as fo produce # constant periodic inferest
rate on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The Group as a Lessor:

Thie Group is a lessor, it determines, at the commencement of the lease, whether the lease is a finance
lease or operating lense.

To classify each lease, the Group performs overall assessment whether lease transfers suhstantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease
is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group considers
specific indicators such as whether the lease term is for the major part of the economic lite of the
underlying assel.

The initial measurement in case of finance leases: the Group uscs the interest rate implicit in the lease
to measure the net investment in the lease.

Al the commencement date, the lease payments included in the measurement of the nel investment in
the lease comprise the following puyments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term
that are 1ot received at the commencement date:

() fixed payments;

{b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

{c) any residual value guarantees provided to the lessor by the lessee, a party related to the lessee or a
third party unrelated to the lessor that is finencially capable of discharging the abligations under the
guarantee; and

(d) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option.
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3- TERIAL UNTING POL INFORMAT CONTINUE
3-6 Leases (Continuned)

Upon subsequent measurement, the Group recognizes finance income over the lease term, based on a
pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's ned investment in the lease.

The initial measurement in case of operating leases: The Group recopnizes lease payments from
operating leases as income on either a straight-line hasis or another systematic basis, The Group applies
anoiher systematic hasis if that basis is more representative of the patiern in which benefil from the use
af the underlying asset is diminished.

Upon subsequent measurement, The Group applies 1AS 36 to determine whether an underlying asset
subject to an operating lease is impaired and to account for any im pairment loss identified,

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it caleulates s interest in the head lease and sublease
separately. Classification of the sublease is assessed by reference to the right-of-use asset atizing from
the head lease, rather than by reference o the underlying assel. If the head lease is a shortterm lease,
the Group applies exemption, the sublease shall be classified as an operating lease.

If the arrangement includes lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract by applying IFRS 15 for allocation the consideration in the contract,

37 Buziness combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method upon transfer of control to the
Group. The considerution transferved is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
agquisition-date fair values of the assets transferned by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group 1o
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are penerally recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as incurred,

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the identifiable assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual tenms, economic
circumstances, and pertinen! conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree,

Al the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the ligbilities assumed are recognized at
their fair value, with limited exceplions.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration teansferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests of the scquiree, and the fair value at the acquisition-date of the aeguirer's
previously held interest of the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable asscts acquired and the liabilities assumed, If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-
date fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and lisbilities assumed excesds the sum of the
consideration transfemred, the amount of any non-controlling interests of the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer's previously held interest of the acquires {if any}, the Group re-assesses whether it has
correctly identified all of the assets scquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the
procedures used to measure the amounts recognized at the aequisition date, If the reassessment still
results in an excess of the fair value of net essets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred,
then a gain on bargain purchase at a differential price is recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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3.7 Business combinations (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment festing for goodwill acquired from the business combination and from the date
of acquisition, it will be allocated to cash-generating units (“CGLU™) that are expected to benefit from
the consolidation regardiess of whether the other assets or liabilities acquired have been allocated Lo
those units.

If goodwill is not allocated to designated cash-generating units because of an incomplete initial
caleulation, the initial impairment loss will not be fested unbess impairment indicators are available to
enable the Group to allocate the carrying amount of the goodwill fo the cash-generating wnits or the
Group of cash-generating units expected to benefit from business combination, Where poodwill is
allocated to the cash-generating unit and part of the operations of that unit are discontinued, goodwill
associated with the discominued operation will be included in the carrying amount when determining
the gain or loss on discontinued operation. The goodwill in such circumstances is Measured on the basis
of the value of a similar discomtinued operation snd the remaining portion of the cash-generating unil.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU {or Giroup of
CGUs) to which the goodwill relates, When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its canrying
afmounl, an impairment loss is recognized, Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed
in future periods.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the enlity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured cither at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement hasis is made on a transaction-hy-transaction basis,
The group [ollows the relative share in accounting for uncomfortable rights. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at acquisition-date fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another relevant IFRS approved in Kingdom.

Any contingent consideration to be paid (if any) will be recognized at acquisition-date fair value and
classified as equity or a financial liability. Contingent consideration classified as a financial liability is
subsequently remeasured at fair value with the changes in fair value recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, Contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and is s
settlement is accounted for within equity.

When a business combination 15 achieved in sfages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the
nequirce i remeasured o ils acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests of the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recopnized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate
if that inferest were disposed of.

Ifthe initial accounting for the business combination is not completed by the end of the reporting period
which constitutes the periad in which the combination occurred, the Group presents the items whose
value caleulation has not been completed in a temporary manner in the consolidated financial
statements, During the measurement period, which is not more than one year from the acquisition date,
the temporary value recognized on the acquisition date is retrogctively adjusted fo reflect the
information obiained about the facts and circumstances that existed st the date of acquisition and if it
is determined that, this will affect the measurement of amounts recognized as of that date, During the
measurement period, the Group recognizes additional assets or labilities if it obtains new information
aboul Tacts or circumsiances that existed at the acquisition date and if it is determined that, this would
result in assets or liabilities being recognized as of that date. The measurement period ends when the
Group obtains the information it was seeking about the facts and circumstances that existed at the
peguisition date, or when it believes that more information is not obainable,
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3- MATERI

3-5 Fair value messurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in-an ordecly
iransaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the preswmpdion that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability will take place cither:

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
= In the most advantageous market for the asset or Hability in the absence of a principal market.

The principal or mest advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
of liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interests |

The fair value measurement of a non-finuncial asset considers the ability of market participants to
provide economic benefits by using the asset for the hest benefit, or by selling it to another market
participant for the best benefit.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate to circumstances and conditions and have
sufficient data to measure fair value, maximize the use of relevint observahle mpuiz, and minimize the
use of unchservable inputs substantially,

All assets and liabilities whose fair values are measured or disclosed at their fair values in the
consolidated financial statements are calegorized within the fair value hierurchy set out below based on
the lowest bevel inputs that is significant to the fair value mensurement ag 3 whole:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date,

Level 2: valuation techniques in which the lowest level of significant mpats is used for the fair value
mezsurement and can be observable either directly (i.c., prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived
from prices),

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that i significant to the fair value
measurement s unobservable (unobservable inputs) For assets and liabilities recopnised in
the consolidated financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group defermines
whether transfors have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing calegorisation
{based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as o whaole)
at the end of the reporting period. The Group determiries podicies and procedures for both
recurring fair value measurements and nos-recurring fair value messurements..

At each reporting date, The Group analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
ure required to be re-measured or re-ussessed as per the Group's accounting policies, For this analysis,
the Group verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the mformation in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. The Group also compares the change
in the fair value of each asset or liability with other external sources to determine whether the change
is reasonable. For the purpose of fair value diselosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and
liabilitics based on the nature, charncteristics and risks of the asset or liubility and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above,
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30 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested annually for
impainment, or more frequently if there are indications, events, or changes in circumstances that may
supgest a potential impairment. Other assets are tested for impairment when events or changes in
circumstunces indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoversble. An impairment loss is
recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
af the asset's fair value less costs to sell or its value in use. Faor the purpose of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest level for which separately identifiable cash flows exist that are largely
independent of the cash flows from other assets or asset groups (cash-generating units}, Mon-finuncial
assets, other than goodwill, thal bave previously been impaired are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at Lthe end of sach reporting period.

The recoverable amount of an individual asset is determined unless the asset does nol generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those of other assets or a group of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset of cash-generating unit exceeds its pecoverahble amount, the asset is considered
impaired and written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing valug in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Recent market transactions are considered in determining fair value fess costs 1o
sell. In the event that such transactions cannot be determined, the appropriate valuation model is used .
Goodwill is assessed annually for impairment and any impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

The Group bases its calculation of impairment on detailed budgets and operating plans, which are
prepared separately for cach of the Group's cash-generating units to which the individual assets are
distributed. These operating budgets and plans generally cover a period of five years. The long-term
prowth rate is caloulated and applicd to the project's future cash flows after the fifth year,

For non-financial assets, excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. When such an indication cxists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or
cash-generating unit. Impaimment losses are reversed so that the carying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, bul the increased carrying amount should
not exceed the canying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognized on the asset in prior years. This reversal is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

-1 Inventory

Inventory consists of textbooks, stationery and school uniforms Inventory is valued at the lower of cost
and net realizable value, and cost is determined on a weighted average basis. The realizable value is the
differcnce between the estimated selling price in the nommal course of business, less the estimated costs
of completion and expenses to complete the sale

The Group reviews the carrying amount of inventory on a regular basis. When necessary., imventory is
written down to their net realizable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is a change in
the usage pattern or physical form of the related inventory.

Management estimates the net realizable value of inventory, considering the most reliable evidence at
the time the estimates are vsed and making a provision for ohaolete mventory. These estimates consider
changes in demand for goods, technological changes, and fuctuations in quality and prices.
Accordingly, the Group considers these factors in calcalating the provision for obsolete, slow moving
and ohsolete inventory.
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3= TERIAL ACTC TIMNG POLICY INF( TN (CONT (1]
311 Accounts receivahle

Amounts due from parents for providing education services, amounts due from government entities
contracted with to provide recruitment services, and amounts due from the private sector and
individuals for providing training services are in the normal course of the Ciroup’s activities and do not
carry interest [ the credit exceeds the normal credit terms, receivables are measured at amortized cost
using the cffcetive interest method. At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amounts of
accounts receivable and other receivables are reviewed for any ohjective evidence that the amounts are
not recoverable. In this case, impairment loss is recognized immediately in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss,

3-12  Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash cquivalents comprise of cash on hand, cash in current accounts, deposits with banks and
other short-term highly liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date
of soquisition that are readily converted into cash amount, are subject to limited risk and available for
the Group.

3-13  Finaneial Instruments
Fingneigl assets
(1} Classification

The Ciroup's financial assets are classified and measured under the following categories:
= Amortised cost

These classifications are on the basis of business model of the Group for tnanaging the financial assets,
and contraciual cash flow characieristios,

The Group measures financial asscts at amortised cost when it is within the business mode! to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of prineipal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

For assets measured at feir value, gains and losses will sither be recorded in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

(2} Recognition and derecognition

Al mitial recognition, the Group measures financial assel at amortised cost when it is within the business
model to held assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the fnancial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
pringipal amount owtstanding,

The Group derecognizes a financial asser when the contractial cash flows fiom the asset expire or it
iransiers s muhts to receive contractval cash Tows an the Mnancial asset @0 8 transaction i wihich
subetaneially alf the risks and rewards of owiership are transferred. Any interest in fransferved fimancial
assels that is created or refained by the Group s recogaized as @ separate asset or lability.
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3-13  Financial Instruments{Continued)
(3 Measurement

Amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash Mows, where those cash flows represents solely
puyments of principal and interest, are measured at amortized cost. Interest income, if any, from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognized directly in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and presented in other operating income - net together with foreign exchange gains and losses,
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Equily instruments;

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value, Where the Group’s management
has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to statement of profit or foss
following the de-recognition of the investment, Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognized in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as other income when the

Ciroup’s right Lo receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in other
operating income in the statement of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment Josses {and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investiments measured at fair value throngh other comprehensive income
are not reported seperately from other changes in fair value.

Financial Mabifities

All financial liabilitics are recognised at the time when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fiir value less any directly
attributable transaction cost.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
rmethod.

Ofsetting finppcial assels and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are off-set and net amounts are reported in the consolidated financial
stutemnents, when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends
gither o settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (“ECL") associated with its
financial assets carried at muotized cost

For trade and retention receivables and contract assets, the Group applies the simplified approach as
permitted by IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, which requires expected lifetime losses 1o be recognised
firom the initial recognition of the receivables. The amount of the foss is charged to profit or loss. The
Group uses a provision matrix to determine its ECL provision but also applies specific provisions when
factors other than simply the age of the debt are known (o management that could impact the ability to
recover the debt,

Trade and retention receivables are written-off when there is nio reasonable expectation of recovery Indicators
that there is no reaconable expectation of recovery inchude, amongst others, significam decrease in credit
worthiness of the customer, the failure of the customer to engage in a Tepayment plan with the Group, or a failure
by ke contractual pavments for a period of greater than 365days past.due

9%



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
{Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024

{All amounts in saodi rivals unless otherwise stated)

3 AL ACCOUNTING INFORMATION [(C0) ED

3-14  Share capital

Ordinary shares ave classified as equity. Transaction costs divectly attributable to the issuance of new
shares are presented within equity s a deduction from the proceeds,

Treasury shares are recorded as a deduction from equity at the amount paid by the company to nequire
them, including any dircctly attributable transaction costs incurred.

3-15  Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company®s by-laws, the Company is required to transfer 10% of net income for
the year to # statutory reserve until such reserve equals 30% of share capital. The reserve is not available
for distribution to the shareholder,

316 Cash dividends and non-cash dividends to shareholders

Cash or non-cesh dividends 1o shareholders are recopnized as liabilities upon aspproval of the
distribation, and according 1o the Regulations for Companies in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, dividends
are approved when confirmed by the shareholders. Dividends are deducted immediately from equity
and recognized as a linbility.

317 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value (as proceeds received), net of transaction costs, ifany.
long-term borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Any dilference between the proceeds (pet of trensaction costs) and the redemption amoeunt is recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the borrowing term using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the facility are recognized as the borrowing sosts to the extent that it is probable
that the facility will be withdrawn partially or in full, In such case, the fees are deferred until the facility
is withdrawn, capitalized in prepayments for liquidity services to the extent that there is no evidence
the facility may be withdrawn partially or in full, and are amortized over the underlying facility term.

318 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs direetly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of qualifying assets
are gapitalized during the period necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended sale or

usc. Qualifying assets are those that necessarily require a long period to become ready for sale or
intended use.

Investment income earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings that are delayved in
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the capitalizable borrowing costs.

Other borrowing costs are expensed for the year as incurred in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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319 Glovernment siubsidies

Government subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy will be
received and that all associated conditions will be complied with, When the subsidy relates to an
expense item, it is recognieed as income on a reguler busis over the periods that the Group intends Lo
offaet the costs being expensed,

When the subsidy ig related to an asset, it is recopnived as income in equal amounts over the expected
useful life of the underlying asseat.

When the Group receives non-cash subsidies, the asset and the subsidy are recorded a1 nominal value
and transferred 1o the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the asset
based on the depreciation pattern of the asset’s benefits in equal annual amonnts. When borrowings or
similar finance are granted by government or related institutions af an inferest rate lower than the
prevailing interest rate, the effect of these differential interest rates is considered a government subsidy
and recorded under non-current liahilities in the financial position as deferred government subsidies.

320 Employee benefits

Short-term and Long-term Emplovee Bepefits

The liability for employee benefits related to wages, salaries, annual leave, and sick leave is recognized
in the perind in which the related service i provided at an amount not discounted from the expected
benefits payable for that service,

The measurement of liabilities for short-term employee benefits is at the undiscounted amount of
expected benefits payable for the related service.

Liabilities for other long-term employee henefits are measured at the present value of the future cash
flows expected to be paid by the Group related to the services provided by employees up to the reporting
date.

Employes Termination Bencfit Liabilities

The cost of providing benefits for defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations performed at the end of each annual reporting petiod,
Remeasurements, which consist of actuarial gains and losses, are recognized immediately in the
statement of financial position with a comresponding charge or credit in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they occur. Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income ars
immediately reflected in retained earnings and are not reclassified o profit or loss. Past service cost is
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the plan is amended. Net interest is caleulated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit Hability or asset,
Deefined benefit costs are classified as follows:

s Service cost (which includes current service cost, past service cost, and gains and losses from
curtailments and settlements).

» Net inferest expense or income.

=  Remeasurements,
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310 Employee benefits {Continued)
Gains and losses from cortailments are socouniad for as past service costs,

The employee termination benefit liabilities recopnized in the statement of linancial position represent
the actual deficit or surplss in the Group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited 1o the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds
from the plans or reduetions in future contributions to the plans.

The liahility for lermination benefits is recognized when the entity can no longer withdraw the ofTer of
termination benefits and when the entity recognizes any related restraciuring costs

321 Provisions

A provision is recognized in the consolidated staternent of financial position when the Group has a legal
o construciive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliably estimated. When the effect is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the cxpected future cash flows using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time valee of money and the risks specific
to the ohligation. The discounl unwinding is recognized as a financing cost in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss,

322 Trade payables amd other payables

Trace payables and other payakles are liabilities to pay for goods and services acquired in the normal
course of business from suppliers, Trade payables and other payables are classified as current liahilities
if they are due to be settled within one year or less; otherwise, they are presented as non-current
liabilitics. Trade payables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured al amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method.

3-23 Continpeni Liabilities

All contingent liabilities arising from past events that will only be confirmed by the occurence or non-
aceyrrence of one or more fulure uncertain events, which are not wholly under the control of the Group,
or all current liahilities arising from past events but not recognized due (o the lack of probability that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seftle the obligation.

3-24  Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from providing services
in the normal course of the Group's activities, taking into account contractually determined payment
terms. Revenue is recorded net of irade discounts, incentives and rebates.

Revenue is recognized when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
firture economic benelits will flow to the Group; and when specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group's activities, as described below,

The Giroup recognizes revenue under [FRS 15 using the following five-steps model:

Step 1: Identify the contract with the customer: A contract iz defined as an agreement between two or
more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the eriteria for each contract
that must be met.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations: A performance obligation is a promise in & contract with
a customer to transfer o good or service to the customer.
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= MATERIAL LINTING POLI

3-14  Hevenue recognition (Continued)

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which
the Group expects 1o be entitled in exchange for transterring promised goods or services to a cusiomer,
excluding amonnis collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation,
the Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for fulfilling each
performance obligation.

Step 3: Revenue recognition: The Group recognizes revenue (or as) it fulfils a performance obli gation
by transferring a promised good or service to the customer under a contraci,

Identify the coniract with the customer

The Group performs a careful assessment of the terms and conditions of the contracts with jts customers
because the revenues are recognized only when the performance obligations of the confracts with the
customers are fulfilled. Changes in the contract seope or price {or both) are considered a modification
of the contract and the Group determines whether this change will be considered 1 new contract or as
part of the current contract,

Identify the perfonmance ohligations

Onee the Group identifies the contract with the customer, it evaluates the contractual terms and normal
business practices o identify all contracted services and determine whether any of those contiacted
services (or a bundle of contracted services) will be treated as separate performance obligations,

Drtermine the transaction price

The Group determines the transaction price as the amount of consideration it expects to be entitled in
exchange for, This includes an estimate of any variable consideration and the impact of a significant
[inancing component (i.e., the time value of money) and the fair value of any non-cash consideration
and the impact of any consideration paid or payable to a customer (if any). The variable consideration
15 limited to the amount for which there is a high probability of ne significant reversal in the amount of
acorued revenue recognized when the uncertainty associated with the varizhle consideration is
subsaquently resalved.

Consideration is determined based on the trensaction price agreed with the customers and there are no
other promises in the contract with customers that are identified az separate performance obligations
tivat must be allocated & portion of the transaction price. When determining the transaction price for the
services, the Group took into sccount the impact of variahle consideration, the existence of significant
financing components, non-cash consideration and consideration payable to the customer (if anv) and
conciuded that such consideration amounts are not included in the transaction price.

Contrect modifications, such as change orders, sre considered as part of the eurrent contract, with
cumulative adjustments to revenue. For substantial contract modifications, a separate contraet may be
recognized, based on the management’s assessment of the following factors:

- The contract scope increases due to the addition of promised goods or services and can he
distinguished themselves: and

- The contract price increases by the compensation that reflects the entity's standalone selling prices
for the additional promised goods or services and any appropriste adjustments to that price to reflect
the conditions of the contract,

There were no substantial modifications to the contracts during the vear ended 31 July 2024.
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3- MATIRLA W TING POLICY INFORMA

3-24 Hevenue recopnition (Continued)

Allocate the lransaction price

When identifying the performance obligations and the transaction price, the transaction price is
allocated to the performance obligations, which is uswally proportionate to their standalone selling
prices (i.e., on a relative standalone future selling price basis), When detcrmining the standalone selling
prices, the CGroup must use observable information, if any. If the standalone selling prices arc not
directly observable, the Group uses estimates based on reasonably available information.

Eevenue recogniticn

The Group recognizes revenue in aceordance with the terms and conditions contained in the contracts
concluded with the customers to the extent that the performance obligations related to the contracts
with customers are fulfilled by the Group by transferring control of a contracted service to the customer,
which can be transferred over time perlod or at some point in time. When fulfilling a performance
abligation over a time period, the Group determines the progress under the contract based on the input
or output method, which works to measure the best completed performance to date. The specified
method is applied consistently to similar performance obligations and in similar circumstances. The
Group believes that it fulfills its performance obligations in ils contracis with customers over time
period for Education Segment, and at some point in time for Training and Recruitment Segments, and
therefore it recognizes revenue when it fulfils its obligations under its contracts with customers.

The Group's accounting policies for revenoe from contracts with customers are outlined below:

Tuition fees

Tuition fees revenue (for Education Segment) is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss during the period of students” study and is stated net of discounts and exemptions. Revenue is
recoenized over time period,

Bus subseription

Revenue from bus subscription services is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period of (he academic year for the students who subseribed to the service either one “one-
way" route or two “round-trip” routes. Revenue is recognized over time period.

Training Services
Revenue from language, computer and other fraining courses is recognized when the training services
are performed and completed. Revenue is recognized st some poind in lime.

Heeruitment Services

Revenue from recruitment services is recognized when the heneficiary entity registers the employee in
the soeial insurance scheme and after the employee’s approval, Revenoe is recognized at some point in
time,

315 Eapenses

Cost of revenue

All expenses are recognized on an ecerual basis. Operating costs are recognized on a historical cost
basis. The largest part of this item includes teachers and trainers” salaries and rents for educational
buildings

Marketing expenses
Marketing expenses comprise of all marketing eosts of educational, recruitment and teaining services
by the Group, and include sdvertising expenses, marketing fees through electronic platforms, and fixed
and digital billboards,
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3- MATERIAL AC ING POLICY INFORMATION (CO
3-25  Expenses (Continuved)
Cicnernl and administralive expenses

Gieneral and administrative expenses comprise of the costs that are not necessarily part of the marketing
expenses, cosl of revenues, finance costs or zakat expenses

32 Fimance cosi

The cost of finance for interest payable to the lender for all financial labilities measured at amortized
cost is recopnized using the effcctive interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument,
or a shorter period, as eppropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial ability. Additionally,
the cost of finance includes the time value of money for all recognized lease liabilities. The cost of
finance is also recognized over ime whenever a provision or liability is discounted to its present valee.

327 Fakat

The Group is subject to zakat in accordance with e regulations of the Zakat, Tax, and Customs
Autharity in Saudi Arabia ("the Authority™) and recognizes zakat linbilities in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the current perind. Any additional zakat liabilities related (o assessmeonts
far previous years, it any, are calculated in the period when the final assessments are sssued.

The Group is primarily liable for zakat only, and sinee the reversal of timing differences, iF any, is nol
expected to have a material impact on future zakat amounts, no deferred tax liability or asset is
recognized in these consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 July 2024, the Group prepared and submitted o consolidated zakat declaration
for Atta Fducational Company and all its subsidiaries, which are 100% directly or indirectly owned.

3-28  Value added tax
The expenses and assets are recognized net of VAT amount, except for:

- When the VAT incurred on the purchase of assels or services is not recoverable from the lax
authoritics, in this case VAT is recognized as part of the cost of purchasing the assets or expensed,
if applicable, and/for

- When receivables and payables ave stated including VAT amount

Met VAT recoverable from { or payable to the tax authoritics is recorded us part of prepaid expenses
and cther current assets or scenied cxpenses and other current liabilities in the consolidated statement
of finamcial pozition,

319  Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
e Profit atiributable o the Group's sharcholders, excluding any costs related to equity transactions
other than ordinary shares.

s The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted
for any stock-hased compensation elements and excluding treasury shares.
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3- MATERIAL UNTING POL. ONTINUED

3-19  Earnings per share (Continued)

Diluted earmings per share
The figures used to determine the basic eamings per share sre adjusted for the diluted enmings per
share, considering:

& The impact of interest after income tax and other finance costs associated with the dilution of
potential common siock,

*  The weighted averape number of additional common stock that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all common stock is affected by the potential dilution,

330 Segment reporling

Operating segments are presented in @ manner consistent with the internal reports provided to the chief
operating decision maker. Operating segments are components of the Group that engage in business
activities from which they may eam revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses
related to transactions with other components of the Group. The operating results of segments are
regularly reviewed by the CEO (the chief operating decision maker) to make decisions ahout the
allocation of resources to the segment and to assess ils performance, with separate financial information
available for each segment,

The results of scgments reported to the chief operating decision maker include ftems directly
attributable o the segment, as well as items that can be reasonably allocated,
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4- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expense. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the
basis of making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting
estimates is recognized in the period in which the estimates are reviewed if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

4-1 Significant judgments in applying the Group’s accounting policies

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which
have a significant impact on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

4-1-1 Going concern

The Group’s management has made an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue according
to the principle of going concern, and it is convinced that the Group has sufficient resources to
continue its business in the foreseeable future. In addition, the management does not have any
fundamental doubts about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
attached consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

4-1-2 Depreciation of property, equipment and intangible assets (except for Goodwill)
The Group's assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis their estimated economic useful lives.

4-1-3 Determining the lease term with extension and termination options, the company as a
lessee.

When determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise the extension or termination option. The assessment is reviewed in case
of a material event, or a material change in the circumstances that affect this assessment. During the
current financial year, there was no material financial impact of reviewing the lease terms to reflect the
effect of exercising the extension or termination options.

4-2 Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

The estimates made by management in applying the Company’s accounting policies that have a material
impact on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are as follows:
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= MATE ACCOLNTI GMENTS, ESTIMATES ANI) ASS PTLOMNS
{CONTINUED)

42 Assumptions and estimation onceriaintios (Continued)
4-2-1 Goodwill-annual impairment assessment on goodwill

The impairment assesaments on the group of CGUs 1o which goodwill has been allocated, are carried
out. The group of CGUSs is determined based on the acquizitions and mergers, The structure and groups
of CGUs are annually assessed, Goodwill is annually assessed for impairment on each group of CGls
to which goodwill has been allocated. The discounted cash flow method is used for determining value
I 0sG.

The principal indicators ysed in the impairment assessment include assumplions for the growth rate and
diseount rates. Also refer to Mote (6) for the sensitivity of these assumptions,

4-2-2  Expected future free cash Mows

The expected free cash flows are based on curvent expectations and specific objectives set for a five-
yeer periad, These are determined for CGUs in setting external objectives and expectations based on
inforiation and observations for the industry such as macroeconomic indicators and market
circumstances. All assumptions used are challenged in setting objoctives and expectations based on
management's best estimates and expectations, which are subjective by nature. They include
expeclations for revenue growth and EBIT.

4-2-3  Actuarial valuation of employee end-of-service beneflits

The present value of rotivement obligations depends on several factors that are determined using
actuarial valuations that use several assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
{income) of retirement include the discount rate. Any change in these assumptions will have an impact
on the carrying amount of retirement obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at each year-end, which is the interest rate used to
determing the present value of estimated future cash flows expected for settlement of end-of-service
obligations. While determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group takes into account the interest
rates on high-quality corporate bonds, provided that the bonds term is consistent with the estimated
periad for end-of-service henefits liabilitics.

d4-2-4  Uscful lives of property and equipment

Ag deseribed in Note (33, the Group estimates the useful lives of property and equipment at the end of
each annunl reporting period. This estimate is determined after considering expected usage of the assels
or physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and future
depreciation charges are adjusted where management believes the useful lives differ from previous
estimates,
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4- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(CONTINUED)

4-2 Assumptions and estimation uncertainties (Continued)
4-2-5 ECL Provision

The Group uses a model to estimate lifetime ECL not credit-impaired and lifetime ECL credit-impaired
based on the change in credit risk for the financial instrument. The Group uses the simplified approach
using a provision matrix to measure ECL for parent and client receivables, which typically consist of a
very large number of low balances. To measure ECL, receivables are grouped based on common credit
risk characteristics and the periods in which they fall due. Historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and future information according to indications of macroeconomics that affect the ability of
parents and clients to settle receivables.

4-2-6 Leases Discount rate

The Group cannot easily determine the implicit interest rate in leases, and therefore it uses the
incremental borrowing rate to measure lease liablities. The incremental borrowing rate is the interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similarterm and with a similar guarantee -the funds
necessary to acquire an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment- so the incremental borrowing rate reflects what the Group would have to pay and that
requires an estimate when observable rates are not available or when it is required to be modified to
reflect the lease terms and conditions. The Group estimates the incremental borrowing rate using
observable inputs (e.g., market interest rates) when available and required to make the Group’s
estimates.
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5 FROPER AND J NT
Buildings and Electrical Maotar Furniture & Projects Under

Lands Improvements Tools& Equipment Vehicles Fixtures Constructhon Total
Cost:
Az of T August 2022 67,679,757 614,316,366 104,702,269 15,471 360 94 646,935 28,636,473 1,145,403, 660
Additions during the year 18,275,000 4,868,082 12,388,210 2,407,700 4,536,787 19.477.450 6§1,952.229
Transferred from projects under constroction - 26,701,755 - - - {36,701.755) -
Juring the year
Drispinsals during the year - [18.956,521) (39,105,076} {GE3,581) (36, 868.097) - (F5.613.075)
As of 31 July 2023 185,954 757 626,929,883 TT, 085,403 37, 145979 621,315,625 11412168 1,111, 743,814
Additions during the year . 517,564 15,051 %14 - 3,533,388 101,455,071 120,569,739
Transferred from projects under construction - 20,038 983 633,721 . : (20,722,703 -
during the year
Tramsferred 10 non-current asses hebd for sale®™ (22 380,500 (16676375 . - . (3W056.875)
Reclassification - (T&e3470) 4,365 68T 638,550 (4,069 626} {107,141} ¥
Disposals during the year - (2.213,530) {37.796) - (14,859) (2.266,185)
Az of 31 July 2024 263,574,257 627,842,853 BE.050,931 37,804,529 61.764.528 101,953,395 1,194,990,49%
Accumalated Deprecintion:
Az of | August 2022 - 139,558 363 88,250,020 34,324,770 T8 458,501 - 340,661 654
Charged for the year - 15,548,137 7126433 B30.080 4, 760 833 - 28,266,114
Disposals during the year - (18 290,607 (38.538,544) {653.550) {34,554 834 i (92717533}
As of 31 July 2023 . 136,215,893 56,857,009 34,471,508 48,664,519 - 176,210,229
Charged for the year ﬁ 16,994,728 8,384,714 479,758 3,768,365 . 20,677,565
Reclassiflcation - (893.716) 3.B02325 GAT,002 (3.5656111% - -
Transferred 1o non-current assets held for sale* - {2.579,815) - . - = {2.579,315)
Disposals during the year - {1,659.838) (22,338} = 112.356) : {1.694,532)
As af 31 July 2024 - 148,077,232 69,022,610 35,608,668 48,854,917 - 301563427
Net Book Valee as of July 31, 2023 285,954,757 490,713,989 21127454 2674071 13,650,106 21412 158 835,533 583
Mot Book Value ns of July 31, 2024 IHS?EST 4TFETEEII 29,029,321 HFEMI 12.909.611 101,953,595 BE9 427,066
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8-

Cost of revenue 24
Gieneral and administrative cxpenses 20

=

PROFPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUELY)

Depreciation is allocated for the year as follows:

Mote 31 July 2024

31 July 2023

29,369,591
257,974
19 627,565

26,045,350
2 220,160
28,266,110

There are land and buildings amounting to SAR 185,96 million (31 July 2023: 170,37 million)
pledied for certain credit facilitics as described in Note {16).

Projects under constrection, amounting to SAR 101.9 million, consist of development work on
buildings within educational complexes, the construction of a new educational complex for Al-
Wasat Company in Al-Salam District, the construction of an educational complex in Argah District,
and a branch of Al-Faisal International Academy. These projects are expected to be completed by
the end of 2024, with an estimated completion cost of SAR 10 million Mote (30) .

* On August 13, 2024, the company's Board of Directors decided to sell the administrative building
{land and property) located on Othman Bin Affan Street in Al-Tzdihar District, Riyadh, A
memorandurm of understanding has been signed regarding the sale of the asset to an extemal party
at a value higher than the book value. The process of completing the transaction is still in progress
during the subsequent period, and it is cxpected that all legal procedures Tor selling the property
and transferring its ownership will be completed within one year from the date of that decision.”™

Rentals

A, RIGHT-0W-LISE ASSETS

Right-of-use assets principally comprise of leases for educational premises, which have lease tenns
ranging from 2 to 35 years,

31 July 2024 30 Juby 2023
Right-of-use assets at beginning of the vear 734,638,554 646,241,933
Additioms during the vear 18,132,223 T8, 023,156
Drispnzals doring the year (55,924,05%8) (35,4002 207)
Adjustments o the right-of-use assets 2.997.071 48,775,667
Balance at end of the year T, B43,700 T34.638.554
Accumulated Depreciation:
Balance at beginning of the year 250,935,577 | 48,765,003
Charged for fhe vear 49,985,139 53883470
Disposals during the year (48,765,758) (26,516, T98)
Adjustments o the right-of-use assets 2,997,071 T4, 799 0072
Balance at end of the year 255,155,029 250935577
Met Book Yalue 454,688, TRl 483, 702977
= Depreciation is allocated for the vear as follows:
Mote 31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Cost of revenue 14 49,988,139 53883470
U 0HR. 139 53,8B3.470
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- RIGHT-0OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

- Short-term and low-value leases amounted to SAR 2,786,804 (31 July 2023: SAR 2.403.946),
which represent the leases of the employees’ housing ( Note 24/ 26 ).

B. Lease labilities for right-of-use psseis

Nofe 31 July 2024 31 July 2023
L.ease liabilities as at beginning of the year S4R.024 457 558,146,582
Additions during the yvear 24,132,223 78,023,156
Disposals during the year (6,219307) (14,050,284
Interest charged for the year 24 26,547,719 23,114,420
Paid during the year {05,539,229) (72,602,986)
Adjustments to |ease liabilities for right-of-
use assels (2366064731

531145863 548024 457

The balance includes an amount due to Dr. Ahmed hin Nasser Al-Miteh "Related Parly" of SAR
3,500,000, (Note 11-3),

The discount rates applied range from 2.45% o 7.58%

Lease liabilitics details are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position as follows:

31 July 2024 A1 July 2023

Non-current lease lability 476,994,160 506,703,566
Current lease lability S415L,703 42220891
531,145,863 548,924,457
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ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
(Sandi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 July 2024
(Al amounts in saudi rivals unless otherwise stated)

= COOIWILL

Goodwill represents the excess of the transferred consideration, the amount of any non-control ling
interests, and the frir value at the acquisition date of the previonsly held equity interest by the group in

the acquired businesses over the net identifinble assets acquired and transferred to the group.

Goodwill was allocated to the Group's CGUs as follows:

31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Orouba International Company for Educational Service 87,400,000 B7, 400,000
Amjad Curtuba Educational Services Company* TOA2T 040 70,427,040
MNabaa Educational Company* ThA10615 70,410,615
Middle East International Schools b, 600,000 6, 600, K0
Middle East Modem International Schools 60,575,000 60,575,000
Mew Middle East International Schools 53,375,000 33,375,000
Al-Ruwad Schools, Al-Rawda Branch 33,091,250 33,091,250
linternational Bim Schools Company 20,318,044 29,318,044
Al BEowad Schools, Al Rawabi Branch 28413273 2B 413,273
Alfiker Private School 14,1 0Hb, 001} L4, 100,000
Stlaymaniyah Intemational Private Schools 14,000,000 | 4, 04001, 0000
Academic Company for Educational Services* 9,776,086 0776084
Jasmine International Company* 9,576,775 0,576,775
AL MNokhba Schocls, Al-Eharj Branch 8.846,495 B.846,405
Alrowad Schools, Ishbiliyah branch T 470000 7,470 000
Al Wasat National Schools Company for Education and
Training 6,638,475 6,638,475
Alrowad schools, Mansours branch 2,519,151 2519151
AkAlsun International Private Schools Company* 1,119,185 1,119,185
Goodwill reduction by acquisition gains (38,121,0040) (38,121,000)

535,544,350 535,544,380

These companies are subsidiaries of Arabian Education and Training

Company, which is 100% owned by Atsa Edueational, (Note 1]

Impairment assessmeni on goodwill:

Ciroup Company “Holding™

Group management assesses goodwill annually for impairment to determine whether the carrying
ameunt of goodwill is less than its recoverable amount or not. The recoverable amount is determined
based on the information used in the expected business plans for five years after reporting date and the
cash Mows related to them, and impaiment is assessed based on measuring the present value of future
cash flows for a five-year period based on reasonable and objective assumptions to estimate the cash
flow accarding to the latest budgets approved by manapement.

The principal assumptions used for eslimating the recoverable amount are set out below:

The values assigned to the principal assumptions are mandgement’s assessment of the fiture trends in
the relevant industries, and are based on historical data from external and internal sources.

A1 July 2024 31 July 2023 .

From  Te From To
Discount Kate 11.17%, 16.17%, 13.4% 16.9%
Growth Rate 2.5% 2.5%

ETHR



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
{Sandi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 31 July 2024
(All amounts in saudi riyals unless otherwise stated)

8- GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment assessment on goadwill (Continwed):

Expected cash flows included certnin estimates for a five-year period and a terminal growth rate
thercafter. The terminal growth rate was determined based on management’s estimates of the long-term
compound annual growth rate of the profit belore interest and depreciation, in line with the assumptions
that a market participant may adopt.

Sensitivity of changes in assumprions

Management believes that there is no reasonably possible change in any of the principal assumptions
that would cause the carrying amoont of goodwill 1o differ materially from its recoverable amount

9- ACCOUNTS RECEIVARBLE

31 July 2024 31 July 20823
Aceounts receivable 122,218,452 123,940,092
Liess: provision for expected credit loss {27,573,358)  (1699B457)
4,645,004 106,941 635

The Group recognizes expected credit losses using the simplified approach,
Accounts receivable carry no interesl,

Movement of provision for expected credit loss is as follows:

31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Balance at beginning of the year 16,998 457 12,659.213
Charged for the year 10,575,403 4,339,244
Write ofl _{5Ik2) -
Balance at end of the year 27,573,358 16,998,457

Information related o impairment on aceourits receivable and the Group's exposure to credit risk is
disclosed in Note (31-2)

_1g .



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
(Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024
{All amounts in sawdi riyels unless otherwise stated)

- FREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Muly2024

31 July 2023

Prepaid expense 15,607,479 17,545,500

Advance payment to suppliecs and contractors 9,976,817 7,993,756

Deposits to others 5,675,713 5447171

Investment in Al Rosld International Company -

advance 5475943 5,475,943

Employee receivables 4,747,369 5,278,035

Clients of the administrative building and halls 4,452,031 3402716

Margin on letters of guarantee 2,286,747 2,297,759

Acernad revenue 2,223,468 I.834,232

Value Added Tax 1,091,593 e

Due from old owners of Eln International Schoals

Company 203,766 203,766

Others 1,469,463 4,972,551

Less: provision for impairment of prepaid expenses and

other current assets (T A68,349) (7,468,349
45,743,650 46,973 089

Movement of provision for impainnent on prepaid expenses and other current assets is a2 follows:

31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Dalance at beginning of the vear T 468,349 6,500,473
Charged for the year - 1,326,003
Used during the year - (358,527
Balance al end of the year T.468,349 7,468 349

Provision for impairment an prepaid expenses and other current assets is allocated as follows:

31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Investiment in Al Roshd International Company - 5475943 5475943
advance
Clients of the administrative building and halls 1,601,954 1,601,988
Suppliers and contractors - advance 121,023 121,023
Employee receivables 9,256 949, 2R6
Others 170,109 170,109

7,468,349 7468349
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ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
(Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2014
(ANl amounts in saudi riyals unless otherwise stated)

11- RELATED-FPARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Belated-party transaetions inglude rentals of educational complexes, expenses on behall, salaries and
remunerations and compensations and committees’ allowances the and board members and key
executives and management carried oul between the Group and the related parties, and between the
Ciroup and board members and committees and key exceutives and management, and those ransacticns
are carred out in the normal course of Group's activities according to the same transaction terms with
third party. Significant related-party transactions and resulting balances are as follows:

11-1 Key transactions with related parties:

Mature of Mature of Amount of Transaction
Relaltionship Transaction 31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Rentals of
Dr. Ahmed bin educaticmnal
Masser Al-Miteh  Shareholder complexes 12,638,000 14,088,000
Shareholder in
Fawzia Al subsidiary
Haghani Company Expenses on behalf T b 209375
Shareholder in
Hayai Al- snbsidiary
Shalhrani Company Expensas on hehalf Tk 209375
A related
Eholoud Al-Issa  party Payments on behalf 1,279,510 -
Building,
Development
Haolding
Company Associate Payments on behalf - 664,300
11-2  Duoe from a related party
31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Kholoud Al-1ssa 3,525394 2,245 889
Less: expected credil loss i(2,328.085) .
1,197,314 2,245 BRY
Movement of provizion for expected credit loss is ns follows:
31 dulv 2024 31 July 2023
Charged for the year 132,085 -
2 328 DES z
11-3  Duoe to related parties
31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Dr. Ahmed bin Masser Al-Miteb®* 4,106,208 S04, 00K
Fawzia Al Hagbani 159,619 166,610
Hayat Al-Shahrani 112,859 119,860
4. 378,656 7RG, 479

*  Lease linhilities include balance due to Dr. Ahmed bin Masser Al-Miteh of SAR 3,500,000 (Mote

B
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ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
{Sandi Joint Stock Company)

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024
(Al amounts in saudi riyals unless otherwise stated)

11- RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

114 Benetits, remunerations and compensation to key management and excentives

31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Key Key
BTy il I AmAEEment BODy and mangzement
commitees’ personnel committees” personnel
Remunerations
and allowances for
BOD and committees' 2,521,123 - 3,854,930
Bemunerations for key
management personmel - 1,473,000 - 2587998
Salaries and benefits
for key management
personnel - 4,899,167 - B,815,833
1,521,123 6,372,167 3,854,930 9403 831
12- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Cash at banks 85,424,134 3K.873,634
Cash on hand 175,735 Gl19.553
85,500 869 10403 187

13- SHARE CAFITAL

The authorized and paid-up capital of the Group is SAR 420,87 million as of 31 July 2024 (31 July
2023: SAR 420,87 million) divided into 42,087,215 shares (31 July 2023: 42,087,215 shares) of SAR
10 ench.

13-1 Shave Premium

On 2 Dhul-Hijjah 1436 AH, coresponding to 15 September 2015, the Extrupordinary General
Assembly approved to increase the company’s share capital by SAR 74.4 million by issuing new
7.4 million shares at nominal value of SAR 10 cach and share premium of SAR 28.17 each,

- On 30 Dhul-Qa’dah 1443 AH, corresponding to 29 June 2022, the Extraordinary General Assembly
approved Lo increase the company’s share capital by SAR 2087 million by issuing new 2,087
million shares at nominal value of SAR 10 each and share premium of SAR 34.08 cach for
shareholders of Naban Educational Company inexchange for transterring all the shares of Nabua
Eduvcational Company to Arabinn Education and Training Group Helding Company — subsidiary
el 0 owned by Ataa Educational Company — in accordance with the acquisition agreement signed
between the sharcholders of Mabaa Educational Company and Ataa Educational Company and
Arabign Education and Training Group Holding Company on 9 Jumada Al-Awwal 1443 AH,
comresponding to 31 December 2021.

The share premium of SAR 71,140 million was reduced by SAR 3.9 million, which is the costs of thoze
shores Dssuanoe,

-3 -



ATAA ENUCATIONAL COMPANY
{Saudi Joint Stock Company)

MOTES TO'THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024
{All amounts in sawdi rivals unless otherwise stated)

14- RY RESERYE

In sccordance with Articles of Association of the Company, the Company is required to teansfer 1094
of net income for the vear to o stalutory reserve unfil such reserve equals 30% of share capital, The
reserve is not available for distribution to the shareholders. However, it can be used to increase the
cupital after the approval of the sharcholders.

IS~ DIVIDENDS

O 18 Rajab 1445 AH, corresponding to 30 lenuary 2024, the Ordinary General Assembly resolved to
make dividends amounting to SAR 46,295 millien of SAR 1.1 per share for the year ended 31 July
2023 (31 July 2023: SAR 42.087 million of SAR | per share).

Borrowings arc as followa:

I6-1  Boreowing from the Ministry of Finance

The Group obtained a long-term loan from the Ministry of Finance totaling SAR 21,2 million to finance
the construction of the educational complex in the Al-Mansoura district. The loan is to be repaid in ten
annual mstallments following a grace period of four years from the date of signing the agreement on
Oxptober 29, 2014, with the final instal lment due on June 10, 2027. This loan facility was granted without

any profil imargin or commission.,
Guaraniees

These facilities are secured by a plot of fand in Al-Salam District and a plot of land in Al Rawabi
District in Rivadh amounting to SAR 21,2 million (31 July 2023: 8AR 212 million) Mote (5).

Mlovement of bormowing obitained with the Miniztry of Finance during the vear 15 set out below:

31 .July 2024 31 July 2023
Balance at beginning of the year 7,615,200 11,422 800
Paid during the year {1,903, 500) (3807 600}
Balance af eni of the year S, 711,40 7,615,200

Movement of the present value of borrowing obtained with the Ministry of Finance 15 set out below:

Mote 31 July 2024 31 Juby 2023
Borrowing at end of the year 5,711,400 T615.200
Less: deferred finance cost
Balance at beginning of the year (1d3013) (1,442.813)
Fiancne cogt for the yvenr 15 339016 309 200
Balance at end of the vear (704,597) o {1,M3613)
Present value of borrowings at end of the year 5,000k, 803 0,571,587

-3 -



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
(Sandi Joint Stock Company)

WIXTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Faor the vear enided 31 Tuly 2024
(AN smounts in samdi rivals unless otherwise sialed)

li-  BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
16-2  Borrowing from local banks

The Group has signed Sharish-compliant facility agresments with several local banks in the form of
Islarmic Murabahas amounting to SAR 943 49 million. These facilities were pranted with a profit margin
and commission on the facilities determined at the rate of return on interbank borrowing in Sandi Arabia
{SIBOR) pluz a fixed percentage, these facilitics are secured by land and properties amounting to SAR
164,76 million (31 July 2023: SAR 14917 millioa) Mote (57, and {10} promissory noles amounting to
SAR 932,32 million, the agreements with banks contain Bank covenants and these covenants are
monitored on a monthly basis by the management, in the event of a breach or possible breach of these
covenants, actions are aken by ihe management (o ensure that these covenants are Tulfilled,

Movement of borrowings from local banks is set ont below:

Note 31 Julvy 2024 31 July 2023
Balance at beginning of the year 490,552,534 AR0,BOR,635
Finance obained duning the year 71,370,509 393,698,750
Accrued finance cost 8 33,727,301 28,180,865
Paid during the year _(GR0,223,425) (412,135,718)
Todal borrowings from loeal banks ol end of
the year 615,426,919 AB0 552,532

Details of borrowings were presentod in the consolidated statcment of financial position as follows;

31 July 2024 _31 July 2023
Mon-current portion of borrowings* Ja6, 255,441 322 84T K21
Current portion of borrowings* 274,178,281 174,276,208

620,433,722 407,124,119

¥ Includes the barmowing from the Ministry of Fmance (Note 16-1)

17- DEFERRED GOVERNMENT SURBSIDY INCOME

Mote 31 July 2024 A1 July 2023
Balance at beginning of the yoar 1,043,613 [, 442,813
Financial expenses during the year 16-1  (339.016) 350 200
704,597 1,043,613
Deferred government subsidy income details
aro presrnted as follows:
Mon-gurrent portion of deferred government
subsidy income 425,174 704,508
Current portion of deferred government subsidy
income 270,423 339014
704,597 1,043,613




ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
(Sundi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the yvear ended 31 July 2024
(AT amouints in sandi riyals unless otherwize stated)

18-  EMPLOYEE END-OF-SERVICE BENEFITS

The system provides end-of-service benefits for all employees who complete the qualifying service
period and are entithed 1o receive the amounts specified under the lnbor law for esch year £ period of

guch servies.

The annual provision is based on an actuarial valuation, The valustion was carried out as of 31 July

2023, 31 July 2024 by the Group's management, using the projected unit credit method.

The actuarial assumptions vsed in calculating conployee end-of-service benefits are as follows:

15-1  Principal actwarcial assumpiisns

31 July 2024 31 July 2023
[Mscount rate (% annum) 5.25% 5.25%
Salary increment mate (% annum) 3% 0.3%
18-2  Muovement of the present value of defined benelii obligations:
Moto 31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Present value at beginning of the yvear 50,536,191 60,261,770
Current service oost 8,729,042 7364810
Interest cost 28 2,427,107 2,173,209
11,156,749 0538014
Paid during the year (11,180,.556) (1 2,465,4H))
Actuarial [osses 2542508 2,191 892
3 July 2024 31 July 2023
La=zs than a year 1 K644, 125 19,383,074
1-5 years 41,470,823 43,150,415
More than 5 years 217,143,055 225,905,113
277,258,106 2EBA438,602

18-3  The sensitivity of the defined henefit obligations to changes in the weighted average of
the principal assumptions is:

Principal Assum Change In Assumption 31 July 2024 31 July 2023

Discount rafe +1% 57,884,568 54,526,399
1% 06,138,232 62,692,301

Salary increment rate +1% 06,445,140 B3, 107 346
1% 57,630,954 55,933,181

The sensitivity analyses above are based on a change in one assumption while all other assumptions
remain constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur as some changes in Some assumplions may be
corrglated with each other. When caloulating the sensitivity of the emploves end-of-service benefits to
an aclustinl assumption, the same method (the present value of the employees defined benefit
abligations caleulated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) is
applied when caleulating the employee end-of-service benefit oblipations recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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19- UNEARNED REVENTE

The halance amounting to 59,554,102 as of 31 July 2024 (31 July 2023; 36,084,127) is the total tuition
fees received in advance for the academic vear 2023/2024.

20- ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
31 duly 2024 31 July 2023

Acerued franchise nphts 4,831,519 4,831,529
Accrued expenses 4,823,753 4,337,692
Accrued incentives and bonuses 4,505,810 11,911,930
Pavable o parents 2,088,138 366962 1
Accrued dividends 278439 2TE A3
Deferred revenve - 2,376,078
Walue Added Tax 5 182 464

Creditors for purchase of non-controlling rights interest

in subsidiaries - 42, 166,000
Oither 1,897,102 2,726,678
18,424,771 72,480,431

21- FARAT FROVISION

21-1  Falat and Tax Statns

21-1-1 Fakal Status
The Group submitted its zakat retums to the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority (“the Authority™) until

the year ended 31 July 2023 and obtained a certificate from the Authority valid until 28 Jumada Al-
Awwal 1446 AH, corresponding to 30 November 2024,

Ataa Educational Company (“the Parent Company™) obtained the necessary regulatory approvals and
the approval of the Authorily to calculate Zakat according to the consolidated financial statements,
where the Zakat provision iz caloulated on the basis of the consolidated Zakat base for the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries and directly owned by 1000

The company is currently under assessment for the years 2021, 2022, and 2023, and the assessment has
ol begen completed as of the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements,

21-1-2 Tax Status

The group has submitted all ¥YAT returns up to July 31, 2024, and has paid all the amounis due, A tax
asaessment wis conducted for the years 2021 and 2022, resulting in a tax assessment difference of
50,446 Saudi Rivals, which has been fully paid.

- 46 -



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
{ Sandi Joint Stock Company)

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024
(Al amounts in saodi rivals unless otherwise stated)

21-  ZAKAT PROVISION (CONTINUED)

21-1  Fakat provision movement

31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Balance at beginning of the year 4,358,870 4,754 468
Charged for the the vear 1,779,563 2,791,088
Fakat provision no longer required 27 (24,932) -
Paid during the year (2,691,586) (3,1 86.677)
Balance at end of the vear S.411,924 4,358,879
22-  REVENUE
31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Tuition fees 730,103,370 669,273,835
Training courses revenie 32 29,725,933 37,714,006
Bus subscription revenue 18,906,213 | 7,593,905
Recruitmenl revenue 3z 2,270,321 18,R68,653
Others - 1,206,277
Tuntion fees dscounis (114,526,358) {78,615, 16%)
Libh4 79479 il (], 507
13> GOVERNMENT SUBSIDY INCOME
Mote 31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Subsidies by Human Resources Development
Fund “HADAF™ B,767,373 11,642,270
Subsidies by Ministry of Education 3,056,526 2,273,825
Government subsidy income 17 339,016 399,200
12,162,915 14,315,295

- The Minisiry of Education grants the Group an annual subsidy according to the regulations
apecified by the Ministry and mainly linked to the budget allocated for that by the Ministry and the
number of students enrolled in each school,

The subsidy by Human Resources Development Fund (HADAF) is granted according to the
agreement signed between the Group and the Fund based on a lump sum amount of the monthly
salary for a cerain period for the Saudi employees coverad by the agreement.
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For the year ended 31 July 2024
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24- COST OF REVENUE

Mt

Salarics and equivalents

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8
CGiovernment fees

Medical insurance

Eleciricily and water

Training course expenses

Repair and maintenance

Texthooks

Students’ activily fees

Stationery and prints

Bus rental for student transportation

Security guards rend

Low-value leases &
Amortization of intangible asaets )
Hired labor

Telephone, mail and internet
Huospitality and Cleaning

Adjustments to Lease liabilities 1
Others
25 MARK : EXPENSES

31 July 2024 31 July 2023
298,904,431 07,682,742
49,948,139 33,883,470
29,369,591 20,045,350
23 438,621 18,466,405
17,023,314 13,758,231
B, 196,165 1,705,026
7,588,713 5,802,374
o, 161,174 6,257,334
4,679,375 451,060
4,505,408 4,580,938
4,042,035 4,269 849
4,027,077 T, 090,831
2,705,082 2,062,732
2,574,304 2,403,946
21,551,885 2,551,885
2,241,665 1,983,419
1,708,044 T B4
LAas.015 403,709
. 357,804
11,300,877 12,951,776
482,233,915 485 117.835

Those expenses represent the value of the marketing and promotion campaigns through the electronic
platforms and the outdoor fixed and digital billboards that the Gronp wses to promote the services that

the Group provides.

26- GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

MNote

Salaries and equivalents

Professional and consulting fees

Bank fees

Technical and computer support expenses
Ciovernment fees

Medical treatment and insurdnee

Stationery and prints

Telephone, mail and internet

DPepreciation of property, plant and equipment 5
Hospitality and Cleaning
Low-value leases

Amortization of intangible assets
Repair and maintenance
Electricity and waler

Oithers

-

31 July 2024 3 July 2023
20,077,382 48,547 468
8,627,585 3,461,185
7,468,356 6,389,010
4,694,948 3 099 466
1,441,263 1,236,752
1,410,555 1,280,207
445,757 1,020,319
408,400 173,631
257,974 2,220,760
256,160 561,974
212,500 :

364,372 470,932
58,442 30,396
27,839 651,498
2,379,176 3,227,108
S7.130,709 74,370,746
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For ihe year entded 31 July 2024
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27- OTHER INCOME

Mote

[ncome from operating leascs

[neome Mrom the sale of bools

Ineame from the sale of umiform

Zalat provision no longer required 21-2
{Losses) / Gaines on derccognilion of leases i
Losses Gaines on derecognition of property,

plant and equipment

Chhers

18- FINANCE COSTS

Maote

Finance costs of borrowings from local banks  16-2

Interest on lease limbilities 6-B
Interest on emplovee end-of-service benefits 18
obligations

Finance cost of borrowings from the Ministry 16-1
of Firiaes

31 July 2024 31 July 2023
7,711,373 10,138,329
1,745,361 6,415,040
781,112 530,442
34,932 i
(238,993) 2,204,880
(582,391) (B60.666)

3,367,156 ZATRIET
12,818,550 21,315,152
31 July 2024 31 July 2023

33,727.301 28,180,863
26,547,719 25,114,420
2,427,107 2,173,200
330,016 399,200
63,041,143 55,867,604

29.  BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basgic enmnings per share was caleulated by dividing the net income for the year attributable to the
shareholders of the parent company by the weighted avernge number of ordinary shares outstanding at
the end of the year, which amounted to 42,087,215 (31 July 2023: 42,087.215). Diluted eamings per
share are the same as basic camings per share as the group has no dilutive instruments,

Met income for the year attributable to shareholders of
the parent company

Waighted average number of common stocks for the
purpose of basic earnings per share

31 July 2024

31 July 2023

30- CONTINGENCIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments - projects under construction

63,370,908 67,786,016
42,087,215 42,087,215

1.51 .61

31 July 2024 31 July 2023
10,002,621 72,381,864
10,002,621 72,381,864
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30 CONTINGENCIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following are the amounts of leases not recognized as right-of-use assets:

31 July 2024 31 Juby 2023
Less than one vear 2,565,304 i) (KD
2,565,304 60,00

There are no lease payments due for more than one year because the group plans to have all the
educational buildings cither owned or leased under long-lerm lease contracts in the coming period, and
as for the employees' housing, cash housing allowances will be granted 1o the employees instead of
providing them with residential premises at the group’s expense,

31- FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's main financial liahilities include lease liabilities, borrowings, deferved government subsidy
income, trade payubles, and due to a related parties. The Group's main financial assets comprise of
accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and other curvent assets due from related party, and cash and
cash cquivalents. The main financial risks for the Group's financial instruments are market risk
(incleding interest rate risk and foreign currency risk), oredit risk and liquidity risk, Management
reviews and approves policies 1o manage those risks.

311  Market Risk

It is the risk of fioctuation in a financial instrument due to changes in market prices, such as foreign
exchange rates and inlerest rates, which affect the Group®s incame or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within scceptable parameters, while optimizing returns, There was no change in the Group's
exposures, or the way market risk is managed and measured.

31-1-1 Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the exposure to various rigks associated with the effect of fluctuations in prevailing
mterest rates on the Group®s consolidated financial position and cash flows. The Group is exposed to
interest rate risk on its interest-bearing assets and ligbilities, which mainky consist of bank facilities and
borrowings. Management mitigates interest rate risk by monitering changes in interest rafes,
Management monitors the changes in interest rates and believes that the cash flow risk and fair valuc
interest rate risk of the Group are not significant,

The trade receivables and payables of the Group that arc measured at amortized cost are not subject to
interest rate risk as defined in International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7, becanse their
canying value or future cash Mows do nat change due to changes in market inlerest rates. Therefore,
the Group is not exposed to interest rate risk on falr value.

The Group’s exposure o interest rale risk is as follows:

31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Borrowings with variable interest rale 615,420,920 490,552,532
Bormowings with fixed interest rate 5,006,502 6,571,587

- All existing credit facilities are entered into with a povernmental entity and local banks and
Shatriacmpliant.
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3-  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)}

J31-1 Marketl Risk (Continued)

Sensitivity Analysiy

The following table dwws the income sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in interest rates,
keeping all other variables constant. There is no dircet impact on the Groups equity.

Consolidated Statement of profit or loss

31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Increase 1040 Reduee 100 Increase 100 Reduce 100
points points _points. points
Bomrowings with variable
interest rate 6,154,269 [6,154,269) 4,905,525 {4,905,525)
Changes in cash Mows 0,154,269 (i, 1 540, 2019) 4,905,525 {4,905,525)

Thera iz no impact on the statement of changes in equity.

31-1-2 Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk of fluctuation i the vatue of financial mstruments dee to changes in
foreign cxchange rates, Forcign currency risk arises when fufure commercial transactions and
recopnized assets and labilities are denominated in a currency other than the Sausdi Arabian Rival, The
Group™s management believes that it is not exposed to foreign currency risk because the majority of
the Group’s transactions arc in Saodi Riyals and the Group believes that its exposure to foreign curnency
risk is limited as the Saudi Rival is pegged to the US Dollar. Management monitors the risks of
exchange rate volatility closely and continwously, and based on its experience and market feedback,
management does not beliove that it is necessary to hedge against foreign currency risk as most of the
foreign currency risks are relatively limited in the mediem term,

312 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk thal one party will fail to meet its obligations, resulting in financial losses for the
other party, The Group does not have a significant concentration of credit risk. Cash and cash
equivalents arc deposited with local banks with high credit ratings, Receivables and other receivables
are mainly due from customers in the local market and are shown at their recoverable values. The Group
has policies in place to reduce its exposure to credit risk. The camrying values of financial assets
represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

The following are the credit ratings of the banks that the Group deals with and banks credit ratings
accroding to Moody's.

A) Cash at banks

Credit Rating 31 July 2024 31 July 2023

Al 13,161 12,647

Al 85,410,073 38,860,987
85,424,134 IR B73,634

a 5] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 July 2024
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3-  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

-2 Credit Risk (Continuned)

B} Aceonnt Receivahlies

Ciross Aceonnis

31 July 2024 Receivahle ECL ECL Hale
Less than | year T EHIE, 26 1,293,508 1.8%
1 year and less than 2 years 20.032,161 B371,309 32
2 vear and less than 3 years 8,328,319 4,850,075 58%
3 wear and less than < years 3,542, Tob Zoil,010 Td%
Pore than 4 years 11,306,281 D447 456 Rd%
Tuotal 122218452 27,573 35K

Giross Accounts
31 July 2023 Receivable ECL ECL Rate
Less than | year TT 187 400 6,202 824 L FA
| wear and bess than 2 vears 13,993,151 1,148,532 B
2 year and less than 3 years 8413728 1,262,678 154
3 yenr and less than 4 vears 10321476 2,011,219 [
More than 4 years 14,024,307 6,373,204 45
Tuodal 123,940,092 16,908 457

MManagement believes that it is able (o collect the receivables because it has the students” Tiles and
the students cannot transfier to another school or leave the school without referving to the company
and paying all the amounts dug until the student can obtain his educational file and pet a clearance
trom the school,

- Receivables are stated net of allowance for impairment and the provision for expected credit losses
iz calculated according to the simplified approach prescribed by International Financial Reporting
Standard (IFRS) 9 "Financial Instruments".

= Defanit in the consolidated financial statements is when the counterparny Tails to pay the contractual
payments within four years from the due date and the reason for the decrease in the ECL rate for
liabilities that exceed four vears of age is due (o collections in the subsequent period for balances
of parents transferred from four years or more,

C) Due from related paries

31 July 2024 31 July 2023
2,328,085 -

Charged for the the year

31-3  Liguidity Rislk

It is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in obtaining the financing necessary to mect
commitiments associated with financial mstruments, Liquidity risk may result from the inability to sell
a financial asset quickly st a value close to its fair value. Liquidity risk is managed by regularly
monitering the adequecy of liguidity available to meet the Group's financial obligations. The Group's
approach 0 managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due, under both normal and established conditions, without incorring wnacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Group’s reputatio,

e A



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024
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31- FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINLUED)

3-3  Liguidity Risk (Continued)

The following table summarizes the Group's financial labilities into relevant maturity Groupings
hased on the remaining period at the consolidated statement of financial position date to the
contraciual maturity date, The amounts m the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

R ——— 31 July 2024
Carrving Less Than | More Than Undbsenumnted
Value Year 1 Year Tn 5 5 Years Value
Latiese
liahbilities 530,145,863 39,916,360 133,109,335 563,339,752 TH6,365 447
Bormowings 620,433,722 274,178,281 J0el, 255 A4l 1 A, T, 597 f2E IR 19
Deferred
povernment
swhaddy
incorme 704,597 276423 28,174 = T4, 597
Uineamed
TEVEnuE 59,554 [02 59,554,102 - S0 554 1432
Trafe
payables 10,144,137 10,044,137 (0,144,137
Avered
CXpEnses
and other
current
Limbilitees 27489830 27485 830 - 2T AR5, 830
Diue 1o
relmed
parties 4,378,586 4,178 586 - SR, .. 1. .
1,253,250,937 415.037.819 453,792,950 610,044,340 1,479,775,118
_____ 31 Juby 2023
Corrving, Less Than 1 bore Than Undiscounted
Wl Year I Year To 5 5 Years Valus
Leass 548,024 457 42 22085 26,976,447 542,018,550 BO1.214,088
lisbilities
Borrowings 497,124,119 174,276,204 267,614,579 56, 2T0, 855 408,167,712
Dieferred [0d3,613 1em4 T, 509 - 143,613
povernment
sithaidy
ineome
Lineamed 36,084,127 36,084,127 - 36,084,127
TeyEnue
Trade L6, 306,260 16,306,260 - 16,306,260
payables
Accrued 2480431 73,480,431 - 72,480,431
CXpEnses
and other
currenk
liahilities
Ense b TREATY TE6ATY - - TR AT
related
parties
I 072 749 486 342,493 504 485,295 825 598295 405 1,4246,084,730

= 8% =



ATAA EDUCATIONAL COMPANY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024
(All amounts in saudi riyals unless otherwise stated)

31- FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

31-4  Capital Risk Management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a sufficient and strong capital base to preserve the confidence of
investors, creditors, and the market and to sustain the future development of the business. The Board
monitors the return on capital employed to ensure that the Group has the ability to continue as a going
concern and to provide returns to shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders.

Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings (Note 16):

31 July 2024 31 July 2023
Total liabilities 1,310,242,654 1,236,634,556
Less : cash and cash equivalents (85,599.869) =-2:(39.493 187)
Net debt 1,224,642,785 1,197,141,369
Total equity 865,095,720 846,814,993
Debt to equity ratio 1.42 =141

31-5 Fair Value

Fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in a
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurement assumes
that the sale of the asset or transfer of the liability will take place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the most advantageous market for the asset or liability in the absence of a principal market.

The principal or most advantageous market must be accessible by the group.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic
interests.

The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers the ability of market participants to
generate economic benefits by using the asset for the best benefit, or by selling it to another market
participants for the best benefit.

Fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers the ability of market participants to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant who would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate to circumstances and conditions and have
sufficient data to measure fair value, maximize the use of relevant observable inputs, and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs.

_54 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 July 2024
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J1-  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

31-5  Fair Value (Continged)

All assets and liabilities whose fair valwes are measured or disclosed at their fair values in the
consolidated financial stalements are categorized within the fair valoe hierarchy set out below based
on the lowest level inputs that is significant to the fair value measurement as o whole:

Level 1: Prices that are quoted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Other valuation technigues in which the lowest level of significant inputs is ohservable
directly or indirectly to the fair value measurement,

o Level 3: Other valuation technigues in which the lowest level of inputs that are significant are not
abservable to the fair value measurement.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated fnancial statements at fair value on a
recurming basis, the Group determines whither transfers have occurred between levels in the hisrarchy
by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting periad.

The carrying amount of the financial assets that cannot be measured at fiir value approximates their
fair value. The financial liabilities have been measured at amortized cost, which is a reasonable
spproximation of their Tarr value,

d2-  SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group®s main activity is to estahlish private and international schools, kindergartens, primary,
intermediate and secondary schools for boys and girls in Rivadh region, mediating in emploving
Saudis, online recruitment agencies, sctivities of temporary employment agencies for expatriate labor
services, providing other human resources, owning, managing, operating and establishing iraining
institutes and higher training institutes. The information relating to the Group’s operating segments
shown below 15 the one that is regularly raised to the Group's operational decision-makers and stated
as follows:

*  Hducation Segment; This segment is engaged in establishing and managing private, international,
French and Indian schools.
Training Segment; This segment is engaged in creating and operating training institutes.
Recruitment Segment! This segment is engaged  inmediating in employing Sandis and online
recruitment agencies

= 31 July 2024

Education Training Recruitment

Segment Segment _Segment Taotal
Revenue (Mote 22) 634,483,235 20715933 2,270,521 G ATEATR
Government subsidy
income (Note 23) 11,05, 3400 G5 M 2T5,5TH 12,162,915
Cost of revenoe (Mote
24) (441,395.856)  (34,119,151)  (6,715,908) (482,233,915)
(zross profil 204,280,709 (3, 702,218) (4,170,012) 196,408,479
Property, plant and
equipment (Note 5) 549,279,741 39,581,452 S0 AT BE9 42T (i
Depreciation of
property, plant and
equipment {Note 5) (27,254,313) (1,740.616) 631,636 29,627,565

=55 .
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31-  SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINLUED)

31 July 2023
Educalion Training Recruitmenl
Segment Sepment _Segment Total
Revenue (Note 22) GO9 458, 848 37,714,006 15,868,653 666,04 1,507
Crovermment subsidy
income (Note 23) 11,222,599 R40,850 2,251 846 14,315,205
Cost of revenue (Mot
) VN aag31852)  (3009006)  (2927687T) (485117835
Gross profit 197,849,595 5,545,750 (R.156.378) 195,238,967
FSGPOILY; planc And 796271486 38,055 854 1,206,245
Eq“ir:lmﬂt H‘El:ﬂ.ﬂ 5} 1 ¥ 4 1 -..2 El 53 5.53 3‘.535
Drepreciation of
property, plant and 24,576,619 [.B15,042 1,874,449 28,266,010

equipment (Mote 5)

- Due to the nature of the group’s activity and its management structure, it is not possible io
practically allocate other assets and liabilities items to different operating segments.

31 July 2024

Education Training Becruitrment

Segment _Segment  Sepment Tustal
Timing of Revenne
Hecopnition:
At some point in time - 10,715,033 2,270,321 31,006,254
Over time period 634,483,225 - - 634,483,225
Total revenue O34, 483, 225 29,725,933 227021 66,479,479
31 July 2023 o

Edugation Training Recruitment o

Scgment Segment  Bepmeni Total
Timing of Revenus
Recognition;
At some point in time 37.714.006 18,868,653 56,582,659
Ower time period 609458 848 - - 609458 848
Total revenue G0 458 B48 37,714,006 |8, 868653 666,041,507

33 NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
Note 31 July 2024 31 July 2023

Addition of right-of-use assets against lease
it 6 18,132,223 78,023,156
Transferred from Property, plant and 5 36,477,040

equipinent o Mon-Current assets held for sale
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For the year ended 31 July 2024
(Al amounts in saudi riyals unless oltherwise stated)

34- ADIUST 0OF ¢ ARATIVE ¥IARS
(1} Interim Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of 1 August 2022:
Balance before adjustments Reclassifications Balance after

Tiem _adjustment debiv{credin debit/{credif) adjustment
MNon-Current
Assels
Liutngible 621,524,138 (10,805,284) (581,088,182)
assets iz A ik 29 630,472
Ciondwill - (45,543,7493) SRl 088 TH2 535,544 389
Total azssefs 2,127,502 135 (56349077 - 2,071,243,058
Equity
Statutory (41,756,561} 1,812,100 (37,544 461)
TGRErYC
Retained (130,149,645 34,308,900 E (05,840,749)
garnings
MNon- (78.210,954) | 8,228,077 (6L ARE.ETT)
Caontrolling
Tinierest
Total equity  (938,562,561) 56,349,077 - (882,213 484)

Reclassification of goodwill as a separate ilem in the financial statements and unification of the policy
for treating non-controlling interests across the group's companies. Goodwill is excluded from the
identifiable acquired assets of the Arabian Education and Training Group Holding Company, in
exchange for excluding the acquisition gaings on the acquired company.

The fol bowing are the adjustments and classifications on the opening balances as follows:
(2} Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of 31 July, 2023:

Balance hefore adjusiments Reclassifications Balance afier
liem adjustment debit!{icredit) debit/{credit) adjustment
Non-Current
Assels
lintangikle
asacis G00,273 444 - (573,665,380 26,608,055
Coodwill - (38,121,000} {373 ,665,389) 535544389
Total Mon-

Current

Assols 1,905, 510,004 CHE D21 000y [ BB 389 00
Prepaid

expenses and

oiher current

Assels 492180978 = (2,245 SR80 46,973 082
Dioe from

related party = = 2,245,889 2,245 889
Taotal assets 2121, 570, 5459 (38 21,000 2,083 449 549
Equity

Statniary

Feserve (48,535,163 3,812,100 (44,723 063}
Retained

eamings (D0,871,266) 34,308,000 - (56,562, 364)
Fetainad

eamings (884,035,091 38,121,000 - {B46,814,991)
Total equity

e
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34 ADJUSTMENTS OF COMPARATIVE YEARS (CONTINUED)

(2} Conselidated Statement of Financial Position as of 31 July, 2023 (Continwed)

Feclassification of goodwill as a separate item in the financial statements and the reclassification of
SAR 617,146 from goodwill to intangible assets, slong with the exclusion of goodwill from the
identifiable acquired assets of the Amb Group for Education and Training Holding Company, in
exchange for excluding acquisition gains on the acquired company, And An amount of SAR 2,245 &G
was reclaszified from prepaid expenses and other current assets fo Due from a related party.

(3} Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31 July, 2023;

Balance before ad justmenis Reclassifications Balance after
Tiem i jus tmenl debit/credit) debitieredin adjustment

cash Tows

firem

operating

pclivities

Prepaid

oxpenses and

oiher current

Assels [ 16,207, 389) - 2,245,185 (13,961,500
[Pue from

velated party 336,110 x (2,245,889) (1,909,779

35- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Alna Educational Company sigoed a portnership agreement with Buckswood Iniermational Educational
Company to invest in the edecational sector in the Kingdom. As part of this, a new company,
Buckswood Riyadh School for Education, was established as o "limited linbility company® with a
capital of SAR 100,000, Ataa Educational Company holds an 80% stake, while Buckswood
International Educational Company owns 20%. The company will be headguartered in Rivadh, Saudi
Arabin, as of Aocust 1, 2024,

Sl PPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Group's consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 July 2024, were approved by the
Board of Bhirectors oo 30 Safar 1446 AH corresponding fo 3 September 2024 AL,
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